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November 15, 2013

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

LeTeoACTIVE.
(0% Tebhel 14

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services, Bureau of
Homeless and Housing Services to enter into a retroactive agreement with vendors to provide

Emergency Solutions Grant Prog
$32,512 effective retroactive to
December 31, 2013.

ram services to homeless individuals, in an amount not to exceed
January 1, 2013 upon Governor and Council approval, through

Vendor .
Vendor Number Town/City Total
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.| 177195-B009 Berlin $32,512
Total $32,512

Funds are available in the followin

g account with the authority to adjust amounts within the price

limitation and amend the related terms of the contract without further approval from Governor and

Executive council.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH

AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,

HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

P

ease see attachment for fiscal details

EXPLANATION

This package includes the fourteenth of 14 retroactive contracts and represents $32,512 of a total of

$469,735, anticipated to be ava

Urban Development requirements.

lable to assure compliance with U.S. Department of Housing and
The Department of Housing and Urban Development stipulates

that contractual funding coincide with the current grant calendar year; the grant regulations also

stipulate fund obligation within 65 days of the formal notification of the award.

retroactive because the Departm

This request is
ent of Housing and Urban Development issued the notice of grant

awards for this contract period late due to delays in finalizing the Federal budget.
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These agreements allocate a po
funds provided to New Hampshir

tion of the Stewart B. McKinney Emergency Shelter Grant Program
e by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The

vendors shall utilize McKinney Emergency Shelter Grant matching funds pursuant to their agreements
for prevention/intervention services, including payment of shelter operational costs such as rent with
eviction notices, mortgage with fareclosure notices, utilities with disconnection notices. Such activities

help negate instances where hou
that these contractors will serve a

The Bureau of Homeless and Ho
of federal funding.

A Request for Proposal was issl

Liaison Conference on October

seholds are threatened by immediate homelessness. It is anticipated
pproximately 4200 individuals statewide.

hsing Services has administered this program for 24 previous rounds

ned at the annual NH Homeless Provider and Homeless Education
24, 2012. The Request for Proposal was also posted on the

Department of Health and Human Services’ website. Criteria for selection included: proposal inciudes

all elements and is assemble
outcome/performance measures

resources; local service delivery

d as required; program design and need for project; use of
and outcomes achieved; cost effectiveness and leveraging of
area coordination/collaboration; soundness of program approach;

accurate and timely utilization of Homeless Management Information System; staff experience and

credentials; compliance with rul
increase in prevention/interventio

es, statutes and life safety codes; increase in bed capacity, and
n or essential services. Each applying organization was required to

submit a separate proposal for each program, which allowed for budgets and program models to be

evaluated independently. Fiftee
from 14 agencies, were evaluate
each organization’s overall budg
scored with all other proposals.

funding. (Please see the attache

The Bureau of Homeless anc

performance through the following

1) Annual compliance reviews a
with administrative rules and cont

2) Statistical reports are submitte
demographic information and incg

3) All providers funded for shelter,
timely and accurate data entry ¢
(NH-HMIS), unless they are requ
primary reporting tool for outcorn
these contracts. As of this date,
(NHCADSYV) is the only provider
specific data into NH-HMIS. Nk
alternate data system, on the san

N (15) separate proposals that could be funded through McKinney,
d and scored.  Since McKinney funds constitute a small portion of
et, proposals that qualified for McKinney funds were evaluated and
All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score of 50 required for
d Scoring and Financial detail for additional information.)

1 Housing Services assures contract compliance and provider
J:

re performed, including the collection of data relating to compliance
ractual agreements;

d on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers, including various
yme and expense reports including match dollars; and

, transitional housing, or outreach services will be required to maintain
on the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System
ired by law to use an alternate data collection. NH-HMIS will be the
nes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through
the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
prohibited by NH RSA 173-B and RSA 173-C from providing client
1CADSV will be required to provide all required reports through an
ne schedule as other providers.
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Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this Request, shelter resources for
people who are homeless may not be available in this community, and there will be an increase in
demand for services from the local welfare authorities in the region. People who are without housing
and resources will resort to seeking local shelter in places that are not fit for people to live in, or will
attempt to travel to shelters in other communities. This will increase the likelihood that people who are
homeless will be in danger of injury or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for health,
education and treatment. Numerous jobs would also be lost since the shelter would have to close its
doors.

Area served: Carroll, Coos and Grafton Counties
Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds.
In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested to

support this program.

Respectfully submitted

Approved by:

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and
families in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.




A Request for Proposal for state funding was issued at the annual NH Homeless
Provider and Homeless Education Liaison Conference on October 24, 2012. The Request
for Proposal was also posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’
website.

Evaluation| HMIS | Total

Shelter Programs Score | Utilization | Score
New Horizons for New Hampshire 90.5 9.5 100
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Keystone
Hall) 90 9.8 99.8
Bridge House 90.5 8.6 99.1
Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter, Inc 88.5 10 98.5
Harbor Homes Inc 86.5 9.8 96.3
Salvation Army - Laconia (Carey House) 87 9.1 96.1
Cross Roads House, Inc 84.5 10 94.5
Greater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network 85.5 8 93.5
My Friend's Place 82.5 9.5 92
Southwestern Community Services - Claremont 80.5 8.5 89
Friends Program 78.5 10 88.5
First Congregational Church 81.5 6.5 88
Salvation Army - Concord (McKenna House) 78 10 88

outhwestern Community Services - Keene 80.5 7 87.5
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc 75.5 7.5 83

Each applying organization was required to submit a separate proposal for each
program, which allowed fpr budgets and program models to be evaluated
independently. Fifteen (15) separate proposals that could be funded through Stewart B
McKinney (McKinney), from 14 organizations were evaluated and scored. Since
McKinney funds constitute a small portion of each organization’s overall budget,
proposals that qualified for McKinney funds were evaluated and scored with all other
proposals. All proposals met or exceeded the minimum score required for funding.

Due to the quantity of overall proposals received, the reviewers were organized into
twelve (12) teams, which met and presented their final evaluations and scores. The
review committee teams included the following individuals:

e Natalie Allen, BA, MBA, Retired NH Department of Health and Human Services
Employee - Over 30 years of social services most recently as a Community
Relations Manager, served on the Local Service Delivery Areas of Concord and
Laconia, and as a member of the Balance of State Continuum of Care

Attachment- Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services
RFP Scoring and Supporting| Documentation
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Michael Bilson, BA
Bureau of Behavio

,, Program Planner [, Office of Consumer and Family Affairs,
ral Health, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH

Department of Health and Human Services

John Capuco, Psy.
of Community Bas
Services

Christopher Cullin
Division of Public

Sharon Drake, BS,

Margaret Fogarty,
Friends Service Cq

Ellen Fries, BA, Cao
Sherry Gould, Dir¢

Bill Guinther, BA,
Authority (NHHF;

Janet Horne, Busin
of Community Bas
Services

David Keller, Forn

Janine A Lesser, BS
Division of Family

Sandra Matheson,
Attorney General's

William McGonag

Niki Miller, MS, Se¢
formerly Administ

Karen Orsini, MSN
Health, Division o
and Human Servig

Linda J Parker, BS
Care Services, NH

Attachment- Bureau of Hom
RFP Scoring and Supporting
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D, Administrator, Bureau of Developmental Services, Division
ed Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human

)an, BA, MPA, Manager of Ryan White CARE Program,
Health, NH Department of Health and Human Services
Chief Executive Officer, Serenity Place (an NCADD Affiliate)

MA, BA, Economic Justice Project Coordinator, American
mmittee

ncord Coalition to End Homelessness
>ctor, Wijokadoak, Inc

Program Policy Analyst at New Hampshire Housing Finance
A)

ess Systems Analyst I, Bureau of Behavioral Health, Division
ed Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human

ner Minister at Concord’s First Congregational Church

5, MS, Child Care Program Specialist IV, TANF Policy Unit,
Assistance, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Director, State Office Victim/Witness Assistance, NH
5 Office

le, Assistant Commissioner, NH Department of Corrections

nior Project Associate at Advocates for Human Potential,
rator of Women Offenders for NH Department of Corrections

N, RN, Director of Quality Improvement, Bureau of Behavioral
f Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
es

CPM, Program Specialist IV, Division of Community Based
Department of Health and Human Services

eless and Housing Services
Documentation




McKinney funds were aw

Bernadette Pelczar

, BA, MSW, Social Worker

Kimberly Perez, PhD, Family HIV Program Manager, Dartmouth-Hitchcock

Myriam Roeder, A

doption Manager, Division of Child, Youth and Families, NH

Department of Health and Human Services

Todd Ringelstein,

Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of

Developmental Services, NH Department of Health and Human Services

Michael Rogers, M

HA, MT, MC, Assistant Administrator, Bureau of Drug and

Alcohol Services, Division of Community Based Care Services, NH Department
of Health and Human Services

Marianne Savarese, BS, RN, Project Director of Health Care for the Homeless

Program

Barbara Thorngren, M.Ed, Collaborative Education Consultant for PeaceWorks
New Hampshire, LLC

Kristina Toth, BA,
of Corrections

Sally Varney, BA, |
Community Based
Services

Dave Villiotti, MS,
Donna Walker, BB

Health, Division o
and Human Servid

Administrator, Family Connections Center, NH Department

Program Planning and Review Specialist, Division of
Care Services, NH Department of Health and Human

Executive Director, Nashua Children’s Home
A, MBA, Business Administrator IV, Bureau of Behavioral

f Community Based Care Services, NH Department of Health
es

Kathleen Walton, Masters in Human Service Administration, Human Service

Director, Town of

Salem

arded to the Operations budgets of emergency homeless

shelter programs to meet federal requirements for the utilization of these funds. In
order to assure that McKinney funds were available to all programs providing

emergency shelter, the fol

lowing formula was utilized:

For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or less, the entire
Operations budget line was supported through McKinney dollars; and

For any program with an Operations budget of $50,000 or more, 52% of the
Operations budget line was supported through McKinney dollars.

Attachment- Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services

RFP Scoring and Supporting
Page 3 of 3

Documentation




Bridge House Shelter (Vendor# 165288 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $30,062
Sub-total $30,062

Cross|Roads House, Inc (Vendor# 166570 - B001)
State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $34,170
Sub-total $34,170

First Congregational Church - Cold Weather Shelter (Vendor# 154198 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $13,832
Sub-total $13,832

The Friends Program, Inc. (Vendor# 154987 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $35,964
Sub-total $35,964

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. d/b/a Keystone Hall (Vendor# 166574 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $18,105
Sub-total $18,105

Greater Nashua Interfaith Hospitality Network, Inc. (Vendor# 159372 - B001)

d/b/a Anne-Marie House

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $9,246
Sub-total $9,246

Attachment- Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services

Financial Detail
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Harbor Homes, Inc. (Vendor# 155358-B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $41,534
Sub-total $41,534

My Friend's Place (Vendor# 156274 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $36,560
Sub-total $36,560

Nashua Soup Kitchen & Shelter, Inc (Vendor# 174173 - R001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $42,557
Sub-total $42,557

New Horizons for NH (Vendor# 175227 - R001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $41,319
Sub-total $41,319

The Salvation Army (McKenna House) (Vendor# 177627 - B003)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $39,351
Sub-total $39,351

The Salvatipn Army (Carey House) (Vendor# 177627 - B001)

State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $33,248
Sub-total $33,248

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Vendor # 177511-B001)

Attachment- Bureau of Homeles

Financial Detail
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State Fiscal Contract

Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $61,275
Sub-total $61,275

Tri-County CAP, Inc. (Vendor # 177195-B009)

State Fiscal Contract
Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42306010 2014 $32,512
Sub-total $32,512

Total $469,735 |

Attachment- Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services
Financial Detail
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Emergency Solutions Grant Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New, Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address

Tri-County Community Action Program, In

C.

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7  Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number
(603) 752-7001 05-95-42-423010-7927 December 31,2013 $32,512.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agen

Maureen U. Ryan, Bureau Administrator

cy 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9197

1.11 Contractor Signature

TMerad Gonf

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Chief Executive
Officer

Michael Coughlin,

1.13  Acknowledgement: St#e of ¢\) e

On g , before the undersigned officer, p
person whose name is signed in block 1.11,
1.12.

County of (&S

ersonally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

[Seall Pol/\wﬂﬁtb&

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

. PAMELA KLINE,

/\/t./Q-/ My Comnaission Exni '33.A_.

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Jus

tice of the Peace

1.14 State Agency Signature

— e (&

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

/W/%//a’m/; e L
Accoc. /"er@ p

A
bt

XAyASNE

1.16 Approv:C by the'N.H. DepartW Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: o Director, On:
1.17  Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

- o

N T SN ’
ld
By: fg’* On: Nov - 201
Y rinne F ﬁf/mb/LﬂHLfk7% /4 5

1.18  Approval by the Governor and Executive Council
By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (f‘State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work pr sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement|(“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by tHe Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall

PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment,
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

Page 2 of 4

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute conceming the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: MA§ E‘
Date: | y / ;(
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts ar omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE,

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: W\ (/
Date:



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers” Compensation”).
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard|to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default, No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto fo the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument|in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: W =
Date: ”I/H’II')




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit A

Emergency Solutions Grant

1. PROVISIONS APPLICABL
1.1. Except as otherwise n

the program narrative
operations, prevention

SCOPE OF SERVICES

E TO ALL SERVICES:

nodified in paragraphs of EXHIBIT A, the Contractor agrees to comply with
budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, for Services,

, acquisition, or rehabilitation as approved by the Bureau of Homeless and

Housing Services, Off
hereafter referred to
1.2. The Contractor agree
Court or federal or st
has the right, followin
expenditure requirem
compliance therewith.
1.3. The Contractor shall
to the funding of the
records shall be main
funding from such pu
1.4. The Contractor shall
describing the numbe
required to provide th
required at the discre

ce of Human Services, Department of Health and Human Services,

the State.

that, to the extent future legisiative action by the New Hampshire General
e court orders may impact on the Services described herein, the State
consultation with the Contractor, to modify service priorities and

nts for the funds provided under this Agreement so as to achieve

ursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are applicable
rvices, operations, prevention, acquisition, or rehabilitation. Appropriate
ined by the Contractor to document actual funds received or denials of
lic sources of funds.

ovide semiannual and annual report information data by service modality
of unduplicated cases served, units of services rendered, and staff
service, as may be required by the State. Monthly reports may be

n of the State.

1.5. All programs under this contract that are emergency shelters, transitional programs or

permanent programs
Hampshire Homeless
contract must be famil

re required to be licensed to provide client level data into the New
anagement Information System (NH HMIS). Programs under this
ar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including specific information that is

required for data entry| accuracy of data entered, and time required for data entry. Current NH

HMIS policy can be a
hmis.org.

essed electronically through the following website: http://www.nh-

1.6. Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into HMIS in a timely fashion could result in the

delay or withholding o

confirmed by the State.

2. SERVICES:

reimbursements until such reports are received or data entries are

The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will provide
services in accordance with the|description(s) cited below:

2.1. Stewart B. McKinney Rrogram, 24 CFR part 576

2.2. Contractor shall use the US Dept of Housing and Urban Development Emergency Solutions

Grant funds for:

B Prevention/intervention Services, such as rent with eviction notice, mortgage with

foreclosure notice
homelessness.

counseling, subs!

, utilities with disconnect notice, and other activities to prevent

nce abuse counseling, assistance in accessing other community services,

and staff salaries and benefits.

O Essential Service% such as assistance in finding permanent housing, employment

O Operations Activiti

and supplies.
Service Location;

262 Cottage Street, Suite 105
Littleton, NH 03561

CA/DHHS/100213

s, including shelter operational costs such as rent, utilities, insurance,

Exhibit A Contractor Initials HA C
Page 10f 1
Date Ill d ‘/ i




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Emergency Solutions Grant
The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A — Emergency
Solutions Grant

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made available
under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:
CFDA #:
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Amount Emergency Solutions Grant Program;

2013: not to exceed $ 32,512.00

14.231

Funds allocation under this agreement for Emergency Solutions Grant Program,
Prevention expenses: $32,512.00
Total program amount: $32,512.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund the
Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing and administration utilizing funds provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Emergency Solutions Grant
Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the time period specified above.

2. REPORTS.
As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to submit the
following:

2.1. Progress Reports: Semiannual and annual financial and statistical progress reports which
identify the status of the Services performed, the outlook for completion of the remaining
services prior to the Completion Date and the changes, if any, which need to be made to the
services, shall be submitted by the 15th of the month following the end of each six month period
on forms supplied by the State

2.2. Audited Financial Report. The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance with
the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies of the audited financial
report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion of said report to the State.

2.3. Where the Contractor Is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within ninety
(90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited financial report shall
be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing the guidelines set forth in
“Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions” by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE.

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time
to time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the general provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the Services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to purchase from the Contractor, in the amount not to exceed the

Exhibit B Contractor nitals A € —
Page t1of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B

Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions of this Agreement. The State
agrees to provide funds for homeless services in payments in accordance with such other
schedules as may be required by HUD under the provisions of 24 CFR Part 576, Emergency
Solutions Grants Program; Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance Act and all applicable
regulations.
The Contractor shall submit documentation of expenditures of Federal funds at the conclusion of
each bimonthly period or any other such schedule as may be required. In no event shall the
funds provided exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8 of the General Provisions.

Upon release of additional Federal funding to the State, the Contractor may invoice for balance
of contracted amount|as specified in block 1.8 based on documentation of expenditures.

3.3. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the Services,
and upon receipt of the semiannual reports, termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the
State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expense which are not determined to be
allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice
specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the
State disallows costs for which payment has not been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs.
Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture
pursuant to 24 CFR Subsection §76.55.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS.
Conformance to 24 CFR Part 84: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements and principles specified in 24 CFR Part 84.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.
Line Item Transfers: Funds may not be transferred between programs nor may funds be transferred
between line items as appears on the budget page without the prior written authorization from the
State. Any expenditures which exceed the approved budgets shall be solely the financial
responsibility of the Contractor. However, such excess expenditures may be covered by the transfer
of other funds where such fransfer is permissible by this Agreement. In any event, the Contractor
shall be required to continug providing the Services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall
make no adjustments so ad to incur additional expenses in State funded programs in subsequent
years without prior written authorization from the State.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor In?tials\'k’! -

Page2of 3 f
Date




New Hampshire Department pf Health and Human Services
Emergency Solutions Grant

Exhibit B
Emergency Solutions Grant
EXPENSE BUDGET for 2013:
Federal
EXPENSE ITEM McKinney Funds Match
Prevention/Intervention $32,512.00 $32,512.00

Rent with eviction notice,
mortgage with foreclosure notice,
utilities with disconnect notice,
and other activities to prevent
homelessness

TOTALS $32,512.00 $32,512.00

TOTAL Federal+Match $65,024.0_

Page3of 3
Date__| [
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant In Aid and Supportive Housing Program

Exhibit C

Special Provisions

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement
are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent
changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or
executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of
funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in
whole or in part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of
appropriated or available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropniated or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shali not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into
the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Add the following to Paragraph 5:

5.5. Upon execution of the Contract and satisfaction by the Contractor of any conditions in the
Notification of Funding Approval, the State shall provide the Contractor with the funds, in
accordance with EXHIBIT B of this Contract Agreement, in the amount specified in the attached
Notification of Funding Approval.

5.6. Funds obligated under this Contract shall not be increased but may be decreased in
accordance with this Contract and 24 CFR 841.400(b) and (c).

3. Add the following to Paragraph 6.1:

6.1. In connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractor shall comply with all
statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, country, or municipal authorities which
impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights,
equal opportunity and housing laws, Section 101 (g), P.L. 99-500, Title VIII of the Civil Rights
Act of 1968, and Executive Order No. 11063, as implemented by the regulations at 24 CFR
Part 107.

4. Add the following to Paragraph 6.:
6.4. The Contractor certifies as follows:

6.4.1. that the grant funds provided pursuant to this Contract shall be used in accordance
with the requirements and provisions of this Contract, the Supportive Housing
Program regulations, and the Application including the Fair Housing and Equal
Opportunity Certifications and the Applicant Certifications contained in Exhibit 4 of the
Application;
that the grant funds shall not be used to replace State or local assistance program
funds used tp assist homeless persons during the calendar year preceding the date of
the Application or were designated for such use through an official action of the
applicable governmental entity during the calendar year preceding the date of the
Application;
that no more than five percent of the grant funds may be used for administrative
expenses;
that, except|as provided at 24 CFR Subsection 573.33(1)(4)(ii), the Contractor shall
not:
6.4.4.1. conduct renovation, major rehabilitation, or conversion of any building listed

6.4.2.

6.4.3.

6.4.4.

CA/DHHS/100213

on

the National Register of Historic Places; located in an historic district,
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Exhibit C

6.4.5.

6.4.6.

6.4.7.

6.4.8.

6.4.9.

immediately adjacent to a property listed on the National Register; or
deemed to be eligible for inclusion on the National Register by the State
Historic Preservation Officer,

cohduct any such activity taking place in a 100-year flood plain designated by
map by the Federal Emergency Management Agency;

conduct any such activity which will jeopardize the continued existence of an
endangered or threatened species designated by the U.S. Department of the
Interior's Fish and Wildlife Service or by the U.S. Department of Commerce’s
ional Maritime Fisheries Service, or affecting the critical habitat of such as

ies; and

6.4.4.2.

6.4.4.3.

Contractor intends to use to make known the availability of services are unlikely to
reach persons of any particular race, color, religion, age, creed, sex, handicap, or
national origin who may qualify for such services, the Contractor must establish
additional procedures that will ensure that these persons are made aware of the
facility and services;

that the submission of applications for grants is authorized under State or local law
and that the Contractor possesses legal authority to carry out the grants activities in
accordance with applicable law and regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development;.

that the Contractor shall comply with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity
requirements of 24 CFR 841.330(a);

that the Contractor shall comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969,
42 U.S.C. 4332, implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 50 and the Coastal Barriers
Resources Act of 1982 (16 U.S.C. 3601); and

that the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846) as described in 24 CFR 841.330(d).

5. Add the following to Paragraph 7.:

7.4

It is understood and [agreed by the parties hereto that in discharging its obligations under this

Agreement, the Contractor shall ensure that no person (1) who is an employee, agent,

7.5.

8.3.

8.4.

Add the following to Paragr:

consultant, officer, or|
that receives Suppon
or responsibilities wit
decision making proc
personal or financial
subcontract or agree
herself or those with
one year thereafter.

elected or appointed official of the Contractor, subcontractor, or the State
ive Housing Grant amounts who exercises or has exercised any functions
h respect to assisted activities or (2) who is in a position to participate in a
less or gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a
interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract,
ment with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for him or
whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for

The Contractor shall J:‘Ot employ, engage for services, award contracts or fund any contractors

or subcontractors du
status as determined

ng any penod of their debarment, suspension or placement in ineligibility
pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

ph 8.

The State may deobligate amounts for any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or a moderate
rehabilitation grant ifithe total costs of the acquisition/rehabilitation or moderate rehabilitation
are less than the appfoved grant.

The State may d
acquisition/rehabilitat

bligate funds made available under this Contract if any proposed
on or moderate rehabilitation activities are not begun or completed in

accordance with the development schedule contained in the Application or within a reasonable

time thereafter.

CA/DHHS/100213
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Exhibit C

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8.

8.9.

7. Add the following to Paragr

The Contractor shall repay the full amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or
moderate rehabilitation grant if it fails to use the structure for supportive housing for the
homeless for a ten year period following the initial occupancy with funding under this
Agreement.
For each full year that the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless foliowing the
expiration of the ten| year period, the amount of the acquisition/rehabilitation advance that the
Contractor will be required to repay will be reduced by one-tenth of the original advance.

If the Project is used for supportive housing for the homeless for twenty years following the
date of initial occupancy, the Contractor will not be required to repay any portion of the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance given under this Agreement.

Upon the Contractor’s written request, the State may determine that the Project is no longer
needed as transitional housing for the homeless and may approve an alternate use of the
Project for the direct benefit of lower income persons. In such event, for purposes of
determining the Contractor’'s repayment obligations, the Project will continue to be treated a
supportive housing for the homeless as long as it is used for the approved alternate purpose.

If the Project is taken by eminent domain or seizure, the Contractor must repay the
acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant to the extent that funds
are available from the eminent domain or other proceeding.

ph 9.:

9.4. Between the effective date and a date five years after the Completion Date, at any time during
the Contractor's normal business hours, and as often as the State shall reasonably demand,
the Contractor shall make available to the State all data for examination, duplication,
publication, translation, or for any other purpose. Nothing in this Subparagraph shall require
the Contractor to make available data that would violate any statute, other provisions of this
Agreement, or agreements with unrelated third parties. The term “Contractor” includes all
persons, natural or fictional, who are controlled by, under common ownership with, or an
affiliate of, the entity identified as the Contractor in Paragraph 1.3. of the General Provisions of
this Agreement.

9.5. During the performance of the Project Activities and for a period of five (5) years after the
Completion Date, the Contractor shall keep the following records and accounts:

9.5.1. Records of Direct Work: Detailed records of all direct work performed by its personnel
under this Agreement.

95.2. Fiscal Recofds: Books, records, documents and other statistical data evidencing and
permitting al determination to be made by the State of all Project Costs and other
expenses incurred by the Contractor and all income received or collected by the
Contractor during the performance of the Project Activities. The said records shall be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices acceptable to the
State, and which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses, shall
include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original invoices, vouchers,
bills, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in kind contrbutions, labor
time cards, payrolls and other records requested or required by the State.

9.5.3. Contractor and Subcontractor Records: The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
preserve and require each of its contractors and subcontractors to establish, maintain,
and preserve property management, project performance, financial management and
reporting documents and systems, and such other books, records, and other data
pertinent to the project as the State may require. Such records shall be retained for a
period of five (5) years following completion of the project and receipt of final payment
by the Contractor, or until an audit is completed and all questions arising therefrom are
resolved, whichever is later.

9.6. Audits and Inspections: During the performance of the Project Activities and the five (5) year
retention period, at any time during normal business hours and as often as the State, HUD, or
the Comptroller General of the United States, together or separately, may deem necessary, the
Contractor shall make available to the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller
General, as requested, all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The

CADHHS100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initiats_\M €
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8.

10.

Contractor shall permit the State, HUD, or representatives of the Comptroller General,

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the

following language:

10.1. The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days @fter giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2. In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with State and shall promptly provide detailed information
to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by
the State related to|the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide
ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4. In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shail provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about
the transition. The Gontractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan
submitted to the State as described above.

Add the following to Paragraph 14:

14.4. The Contractor shall obtain property, casualty or hazard insurance in an amount at least equal
to the amount of any acquisition/rehabilitation advance or the moderate rehabilitation grant
provided to the Contractor. The Contractor shall assure that such insurance remains in full
force during the term of the commitment to provide supportive housing for the homeless.

Add the following to Paragraph 20:
20.1. DEVELOPMENT
20.1.1. The Contractor assures that it has control of the site and/or structure to be used for

the Project as described in the Application and EXHIBIT A of this Contract.

20.1.2. The Contractor shall keep and maintain such books, records, and other documents as
required by the State as may be necessary to reflect and disclose fully the amount and
disposition of grant funds, and the total cost of activities paid for, in whole or in part,
with grant funds.

20.2. OPERATION

20.2.1. The Contractor agrees that it will facilitate the provision of necessary supportive
services to the residents of the Project.

20.2.2. The Contragtor shall assure that the Project will be operated in accordarice with the
Project Spansor Executive Officer Certifications contained in EXHIBIT 4 of the
Application.

20.2.3. The Contractor shall operate the Project as transitional housing for homeless persons
for a ten-year period foliowing the initial occupancy with grant funds provided pursuant
to this Contract.

20.2.4. In the event the Project is not operated as supportive housing for the homeless for ten
years following the initial occupancy with grant funds as provided in Paragraph 1.8.
above, the Gontractor shall repay the full amount of the grant funds in accordance with
Paragraph 8. of this Contract.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C Contractor Initials w“ .
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20.2.5.

20.2.6.

20.2.7.

20.2.8.

The Contractor shall assure that residents in the Project will be charged rent in
accordance|with section 3(a) of the United States Housing Act of 1937, which requires
residents to|pay the highest of (1) 30 percent of the family’s monthly income (adjusted
in accordance with 24 CFR 841.320); (2) 10 percent of the family’'s monthly income; or
(3) if the family is receiving payments for welfare assistance from a public agency and
a part of the payments, adjusted in accordance with the family’s actual housing costs,
is specifically designated by the agency to meet the family’s housing costs, the portion
of the payments that is designated.

The Contractor shall conduct an ongoing assessment of the supportive services
required by the residents in the Project.

The Contractor shall provide a residential supervisor, as specified in the Application,
who will facilitate the adequate provision of supportive services to the residents of the
housing throughout the term of the commitment to operate the Project as supportive
housing for the homeless.

The Contractor shall provide safe and sanitary housing and shall comply with all State
and local housing codes, licensing requirements and other requirements regarding the
condition of the structure and the operation of the Project.

20.3. SUPPORTIVE HOUSING PROGRAM COVENANTS

20.3.1.

20.3.2.

20.3.3.

If the structure used for supportive housing is owned or leased by the Contractor,
restrictions regarding the use of the structure will be contained in a covenant, running
with the land recorded in the land records of the jurisdiction in which the structure is
located.
The covenant running with the land, required in Paragraph 20.3.1 above, must state
that the owner and his or her successors, assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall, if
the Project is not used as supportive housing for homeless persons for ten years
following initial occupancy with contract funds, the owner, his/her successors and
assigns, heirs, grantees or lessees shall be required to repay the full amount of the
grant unless HUD determines that the Project is no longer needed for use as
supportive housing for homeless persons and approves the use of the Project for the
direct benefit of lower income persons.

The Contractor shall ensure that the covenants required by Paragraph 20.2.5 above,
are recorded prior to the commencement of any acquisition or rehabilitation activity,
for a Project receiving a rehabilitation advance or a moderate rehabilitation grant, or,
for a Project receiving an acquisition advance, recorded immediately after the
recording of the deed for the structure acquired with the acquisition advance.

20.4. OTHER PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS
If a structure rehabilitated with grant funds is leased from a religious organization, the
Contractor shall ensure that the lease contains the following provisions:

2041
204.2.

20.4.3.

20.4.4.

20.4.5.

20.46.

CA/DHHS/100213

the leased premises will be used exclusively for secular purposes and be available to
ardless of religion; and

the lease payments will not exceed the fair market rent of the structure without the
rehabilitation; and

the cost of improvements that benefit any portion of the structure that is not used for
the provision of supportive housing for the homeless is allocated to and paid for by the
religious organization, and

unless the lessee, or a successor lessee acceptable to the State, retains the use of
the leased premises for a wholly secular purpose for at least the useful life of the
improvements, the lessor will pay to the lessee, within a reasonable time, an amount
equal to the residential value of the improvements, and

the Contractor shall comply with the policies, guidelines and requirements of OMB
Circular Number A-87 and A-102 as set forth in 24 CFR Part 85, except the
requirements of 24 CFR 85.24 are modified by 24 CFR 841.125 and the requirements
of 24 CFR 85.31 are modified by 24 CFR 841.310 and 841.315, and

the Contractor’s financial management system shall provide for audits in accordance
with 24 CFR|Part 44, and
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204.7.

the Contraﬁlor shall keep any records and make any reports that the State may

require. E

stimates for the cost of acquisition and/or rehabilitation or moderate

rehabilitation of the Project shall be supported by documentation on file and
maintained for at least three years of operation with funding under this program.
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ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Retroactive Payments — Individual Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any services provided to any individual
prior to the Effective Date of this| Agreement and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the
Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or
(except as otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is
eligible for such services.

2. Retroactive Payments — Contractor Services

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement or in any other document,
agreement or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that no
payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for any costs incurred for any purposes
prior to the Effective Date of this| Agreement.

3. Audit Requirement
The Contractor shall deliver to the State, at the address set forth in Section 1.2 of these General
Provisions, an independent audit performed by a Certified Public Accountant, of the Contractor, including
the funds received under this Agreement.

The following requirement shall apply if the Contractor is a State or Local Government: If the federal
funds received under this or any other Agreement from any and all sources exceeds $25,000 in the
aggregate in a one year fiscal period the required audit shall be performed in accordance with the
provisions of OMB Circular A-12B, Single Audits of State and Local Governments.

4. Credits
All documents, notices, press releases, research reports, and other materials prepared during or resulting
from the performance of the services or the Agreement shall include the following statement: “The
preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed under an Agreement with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services, with
funds provided in part or in whole by HUD.”

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit C-1 Contractor Initials \)\’\ L

Page 1 of 1
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REi- ARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.

701 et seq.), and further agrees o have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH/AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989
regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Regqister (pages 21681-
21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a
grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one
certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the
federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of

fact upon which reliance is plac
certification shall be grounds

government wide suspension or d

NH

(A) The grantee certifies that

when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
r suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or
barment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

t will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possessian or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace

and specifying the ac

(b) Establishing an ol

(1)
(2)
()

(4)

The gran
Any avai
and

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regardin

January 2009
Page 1 of 2

The dang

The pena
occurring

Ions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;
going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

rs of drug abuse in the workplace;
Ee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
lable drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;

ties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
in the workplace;

Contractor Initials: SLV\('
Date: W /8 /|’(

g Drug Free Workplace Requirements




(c) Making it a requ

be given a copy

(d)

employment un

(1)
()

Abide b
Notify th
statute

convictian;

(e)
subparagraph (

Page 52 of _/ 2

irement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant

f the statement required by paragraph (a);

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

r the grant, the employee will

the terms of the statement; and
employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
urring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such

conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title,

to every grant o
the Federal age
shall include the

Taking one of t
subparagraph (d

(1)

(f)

Taking a
terminati

(2
health, I

cer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
cy has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
dentification number(s) of each affected grant;

e following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted

propriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
n, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as

itation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local

w enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation

of paragraphs (a), (b

(B) The grantee may insert in
connection with the specific grant

, (©), (d), (e), and (f).

the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in

Place of Performance (street addless, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check [ if there are workplaceL on file that are not identified here.

Tri-County Community
Action Praogram,

Inc.F

rom1/1/13 To: 12/31/13

(Contractor Name)

Michael Coughlin,

(

Chi

Period Covered by this Certification)

jef Executive Officer

(Name & Title of Authorized ContractcPr Representative)

/8 {7

Waeeea L ( @ﬁ“L

(Contractor Representative Signatur:

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regardi

January 2009
Page 2 0of 2

(Date)’

Contractor Initials:_LU ¢
g Drug Free Workplace Requirements
T Date: [ / g / /3
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT E
CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section|1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH A&D HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):

*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A

*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D

*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX

*Medicaid Program under Title XX
*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi
*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: 11/ %’%t?gh_ 12/31/2013

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the
undersigned shall complete anhd submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject
to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

\)\/Cxxo,\Q ()zr\ N Michael Coughlin, Chief Executive Officer
(Contractor Representative Siggature) {Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. u/a /.3
(Contractor Name) (Date) o

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: 1
Standard Exhibit E ~ Certification Regarding Lobbying
January 2009 Date: ”/3 // =<
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CERTIFICATI

page ot /1

partment of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F
ON REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION

AND

) OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

" The Contractor identified in Seg
Executive Office of the Presid
Suspension, and Other Re
representative, as identified in
Certification:

tion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
nt, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
ponsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFI
1. By signing and su
providing the certifi

ATION
mitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is
tion set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human
Services’' (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of
the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to

other remedies a
for cause or default

agency to whom th
participant learns
erroneous by reaso

transaction,” “partic
“voluntarily exclude!
and Coverage secti
See the attached d

the proposed cover
tier covered transa

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,

ilable to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction

The prospective prLimary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS

s proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become
n of changed circumstances.

suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
pant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
d,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions
ons of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.
finitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should

transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tion with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by

DHHS.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operatiol
Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, SuIension and Other Responsibility Matters

January 2009
Page 1 of 3

Contractor Initials: !M L
Date: H/ﬂ / ! ,7
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7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause| titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusian - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the
Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person
who is suspended| debarred, ineligible, or voluntarly excluded from participation in this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may
terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and
its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or |destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen

property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental
entity (Federal,| State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and

(d) have not within|a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prosmc&ve primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such |prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal

(contract).
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operatio Contractor Initials:;_1A1 C
Standard Exhibit F -
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters / /
January 2009 Date: U | 3 Ls »

Page 2 of 3
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant,
as defined in 45 CFR| Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal
department or agency.

(b) where the [prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,

such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).
The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it
will include this clause |entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
\\/\,uwi CEM &}\~ Michael Coughlin, Chief Executive Officer
(Contractor Representative\$i§natt re) (Authonzed Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Tri-County Communitly Action Program, Inc. ( /A // <
(Contractor Name) (Date) '
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operatio Contractor |nitia|s:_LVl_L_

Standard Exhibit F -
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters

January 2009 Date: I / a4 / 14 BS
Page 3of 3 b
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NH Dca‘partment of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’'s

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.
\)\/\ka& CL\ < Michael Coughlin, Chief Executive Officer
{Contractor Representativé-/Signatu re) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. L /8 /Jl
(Contractor Name) (Date) 7
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operatio Contractor Initials:&_
Standard Exhibit G — Cerification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act .
January 2009 Date: //7/ a /IE
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

CERTIFICATION |

Public Law 103-227, Part C - E
{Act), requires that smoking n
contracted for by an entity and
or library services to children u

directly or through State or loc;
law does not apply to childre
Medicare or Medicaid funds, an
to comply with the provisions o
$1000 per day and/or the impos

The Contractor identified in Seg

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

nvironmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
pt be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
used routinely or regularly for the provision of heaith, day care, education,
nder the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
al governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
n's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
d portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
f the law may resuit in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
ition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

tion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

1.
with all applicable provision

[

By signing and submitting t

his contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
5 of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Michael Coughlin,

(Contractor RepresentativeSignatu

Tri-County Community Action Program,

re) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

“/5 ///K

Inc.

{Contractor Name)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operatio!

S
Standard Exhibit H — Certification Regagfing Environmental Tobacco Smoke

January 2009

(Date)

Contractor Initials: bt Q

Date: U'/A ,//3

Chief Executive Officer
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT I
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 and those parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or
have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

USINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT
1) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.
13400.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of

Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data_Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

j- “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement Contractor Initials: .
September 2009
Page 1 of 6 Date: ”/8 ,//(
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. “Secretary ” shall mean

Page [0 of /¢

“Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health

information” in 45 C}
Business Associate fro

R Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
or on behalf of Covered Entity.

“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR

Section 164.501.

designee.

“Security Rule” shall

Health Information at 4

“Unsecured Protected K

the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her

mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
S CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

{ealth Information” means protected health information that is not secured

Use and Disclosure of

indecipherable to una

thorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards

by a technology stand:E:d that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or

developing organizatio

Other Definitions - Al
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 1

that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
60, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Protected Health Information.

Business Associate sh

Il not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information

(PHI) except as reasonlably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would

constitute a violation of]

Business Associate may

the Privacy and Security Rule.

use or disclose PHI:

L For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

II. As required
1L

To the extent Business

by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or

For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third

party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;

and (ii) an agreement f1

om such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the

HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate

services under Exhibit
disclosure on the basis

shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide
A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for
that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that

Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If

Covered Entity objects
PHI until Covered Enti

Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business
September 2009
Page 2 of 6

o such disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the
has exhausted all remedies.

Contractor Initials:_(/\1 L
Date: “'/g’//,')

iate Agreement
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Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
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If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such
additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing,

any use or disclosure
involving Covered Entif
13402.

The Business Associate
forth in, the HITECH 4

of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident

ty data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.

shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set
Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shaLl make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and

records relating to the
Business Associate on
Covered Entity’s compl

use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
lance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to

PHI under the Agreeme

nt, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on

the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as

provided under Section
third party beneficiary

(3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s

intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by

standard provision #13
health information.

of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered

Entity, for purposes of

enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance

with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business

Associate shall provide

access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as

directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR

Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) busin
amendment of PHI or

ss days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the

Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR

Section 164.526.

September 2009
Page 3 of 6
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Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
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Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity

such information as Ca

vered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting

of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from

the Business Associate
request to Covered E
forwarded requests. H
cause Covered Entity ¢
Rule, the Business Ass

, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
ntity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
lowever, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would
)r the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
nciate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such

law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business

Associate shall return
created or received by

or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not

retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the

disposition of the PHI

has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall

continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires

that the Business Ass
Covered Entity that the

Obligations of Covere
Covered Entity shall n

Privacy Practices prov
extent that such change

pciate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
PHI has been destroyed.

Enti
ptify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of

ded to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to| Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR

Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHL.

Contractor Initials:__ W\ C

Date:_t { /6 //7
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Standard Exhibit | - HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
September 2009
Page 5 of 6

Page (2 of / (/
Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate| Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the
Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regul References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as
amended from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

Data Ownership. The|Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any person(s)
or circumstance is held| invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which
can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or

destruction of PHI, exte

nsions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and

indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

Contractor Initials: ‘ {/l e
Date: !(‘d {( ;
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the|parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

LU DAH S

Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.

The State Agency Name

N

)

\4/%7@

Name of the Contractor

WA ook Q/\ ¢ .

Signatiire o?Aﬂt tized l\ieprrésbntt{tive

A Aon g CM

Signature of Authorizged7 Representative

Michael Coughlin

Name of Autho[rized Representative U

)4& OC A’f&(]('

Ut TX’\\/ e

Name of Authorized Representative

Chief Executive Officer

Title of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

\1/8 /%

,////9/5
7~

Date

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business As
September 2009
Page 6 of 6

sociate Agreement

Date

Contractor Initials;_t41¢_
Date: ‘1//3 /‘ g




NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part|170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of theentity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment jis made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

va\— cogQ ( e T Michael Coughlin, Chief Executive Officer
T
(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Tri-County Community| Action Program, Inc.

(Contractor Name) (Date)

Contractor initials: _|{1C
Date: (/4 / r T
Page # 4 of Page#t =~




NH

As the Contractor identified in
below listed questions are true

1. The DUNS number for your ¢

2. In your business or organizat
receive (1) 80 percent or more g
grants, sub-grants, and/or coope
from U.S. federal contracts, sub

X NO
I
If the answ
3. Does the public have access t.
or organization through periodig
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(]
NO

If

Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

!Eection 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the

nd accurate.

entity is: 07-397-5708

ion’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
f your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
rative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
contracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

YES

f the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

er to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

o information about the compensation of the executives in your business
reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867?

YES

the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation
organization are as follows:

Name:
Name:
Name:
Name:

Name:

of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or

Amount: ___
Amount:
Amount:
Amount:

Amount:

Contractor initiajs: _ <~
Date: LI /8 /1%
Page# 2 ofPage# 2




SBtate of Neto Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby

certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY
CAP)isa N'ew Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed May 18, 1965. I further certify
that it is in good stsmdjing as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and

paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 5 day of June A.D. 2013

ey S~

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State
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ERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Todd Fahey, do hereby certify that:

1.

powers of, the Tri-Coun

2. The following are resolu

RESOLVED: That

renewals, revisions ¢

Services, acting thro

RESOLVED: That

[ am the Special Trustee

appointed by the NH Probate Court to act on behalf of, and with all the

ty Community Action Program, Inc., Board of Directors;
tions of the corporation, duly enacted on November 8, 2013:
this corporation may enter into any and all contracts, amendments,

or modifications thereto, with the NH Department of Health and Human

ugh its Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services.

the Tri-County Community Action Program Chief Executive Officer is

hereby authorized on behalf of this corporation to enter into said contracts with the NH

Department of Heal

deem necessary, des

3. Michael Coughlin is the

4. The foregoing resolution

November 8, 2013.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, |

day of November, 2013.

STATE OF NH
COUNTY OF MERRIMACK

i

and other instrument

and Human Services, and to execute any and all documents, agreements,
s, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he may
irable or appropriate.

Tri-County Community Action Program Chief Executive Officer.

s have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and effect as of

have hereunto set my hand as the Spe ustee (f/ﬂ?«: corporation this 8"

Todd Fahey, cbiat-Trustee

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ES day of November, 2013, by Special

Trustee Todd Fahey.

1082067_1

Oeammedle UL eompon

Motary Public/}usticeof thePeace—

My Commission Expires: g ANNETTE M. WEEMAN, Notary Public
My Commission Expires March 10, 2015
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___Case Name:

EXHIBIT A

THE STATE OF NEW. HAMPSHIRE

1st Clrcuit -~ Probate Divislon - Lancaster

56 School St., Sults 104 -
Lancaster NH 03584

TODD C FAHEY, ESQ
ORR & RENO PA
PO BOX 3550

CONCORD NH 03302-3550 | ;

Case Number:

Date: January 15, 2013
Time: 11:00 AM
1 -Hour

163
Con

Nlatters to ba t:onsldered _
STATUS GONFERENCE PER

You have received thls notice be¢

jcord, NH 03301 ]

JUDICIAL BRANGH
NH CIRCUIT CC;)URT

! Telaphone: (603) 788-2001

TTY/TDD Relay: (800) 736-2964

hﬂp:i/www.oourts.state.nh.us

NOTIGE OF GONFERENGE

IN RE: TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY Acnon PROGRAM, ING.
314:2012-EQ-D0288 -

- Ac-conference Is scheduled as fO“OWS'

6thCircult-Probate Dlvlslon-Concord~Courtroom

North Maln Street . |

ORDER OF 151412 | IR
sause you are an interested party to the case, ah attomey of record, or

NN
h

have filed an appearance, motion or objection.

If you wish to reschedule or contj

nue thls conference, a motlon {o reschedule or continue must be filed

with this court by December 24, 2012 for the judge’s review and ruling. (You may use form NHJB-
2128-P to file that motion.) Coplas must be sent to all parhes This form may bs obtalned at

.courts.state.nh.us/probate,

or from any NH Probate Division,

lf'you will need an interpreter or oﬁher accommodations fer this .conference, please contact the court

Immediately.

Please be advised (and/or advise clients, witnesses, and others) that it is a class B felony to carry a

December 14, 2012

Anthony |. Blenkinsop, ESQ

NHJB-2421-P (07/01/2011)

- firearm or other deadly weapon aT deflned In RSA 625: 11 V ina courtroom or area used by a court.

Tern L, Peterson
Clerk of Court

C: Michael Delaney, ESQ; Tri-County Community Action i[Prog.ram Inc.; Wayne T. Moynihan, ESQ;

DEGCEIYE
| pEC 1.7 2012
0uo '

I
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___Case Name:

‘Any Motion for Reconsideration
the Supreme Court must be filed by January 13, 2013. !

" NHJB-2437-P (07/01/2011)

"THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

1st Clrcuit - Probate Dvislon - Lancas
55 School St., Sulte 104 :
Lancasfer NH 0_3584

TODD C FAHEY, ESC
ORR & RENO PA
PO BOX 3550

GONCORD NH 0330

IN RE: TRI-C

Case Number: . 314-2012-EQ-

On December 14, 2012, Judge |
Emergency (EX PARTE)

Enclosed please_ﬂnd the

JUDICIAL BRANCH
" NH CIRCUIT COURT
er ; Telephone: (603) 788-2001
‘ : TTY/TDD Relay: (800) 736-2964
: http/f’www,courls.state.nh.us
NOTICE OF'DEClISION
)
2-3550

OQUNTY COMMUNITY AC I'ION PROGRAN, ING.
00288

David D. King issued orde;“rs relative to:

Petition for the Appqintmén_t_of a Speclal Trustes:
Order Issued 12/14/201 2.!

. L
Also Enclosed Notlce of Conference - for a Status IConferem:e January 15, 2013 per Court

Order of 12H4i12.

December 14, 2012

must be filed with this court by December 24, 2012 Any appeats to

Teri L; Peterson
Clerk ofiCourt

| _
C: Michael Delaney, ESQ; Anthony I. Blenkinsop, ESQ; Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.;

Wayne T. Moynihan, ESQ

- ] oechyam
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~the rellef requested, as

THE

COO0S COUNTY

Iinre; TRl

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

CIRCUIT COURT

. 15T CIRCUIT-PROBATE DIVISION
COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM ING.
_CASE #314-2012-£Q-00288

|

OBDER, '

Before the court is an emergericy {ox parfef) tequest for hearing and petifion for

. the Immediate appolntment of a special trustge to act In the stead of the board of

trustees of Tri-County Cdmmumty Action Program Inc., a 501(c) (3) organizallon (T Th

of Charitable Trusts (the

" County). The petition was filed with e court by the Office of Attomey General, Director -

Dlrector) yia fax on Dec%mber 13, 2012 and a copy was

provided to Wayne T, M‘[ynlhan, Esq., counsel fqé Tri-County. Because of the nature of

ell as the allegations contained In the petition, the request for

immediate hearing was GRANTED A heanng was scheduled and held on Friday

morning, December 14, 2012 at the 8" Clrcutt Probata Divislon. The Director of

Charitable Trusts, Antho
mémbers of his staff, Ing
Trusts, Atftorney Moyni
County boar_d' of direston
Todd C. Fahey, Esq., the

ny I, Blenkinsop, Esq. wafsx presentfor the hearing with other
Juding Terry M. Knowles,iAssTstant Director of Charitable

han, who has filed a general appearance on behalf of the Tr}-
s, appeared telephomcally, Also present for the hearing was

6 proposed specual trusteg. Prior to the hearing, A‘rtomey

Moynihan filed a partial answer and notice of no. Jb]ectlon to the appointment of a

special trustes.

- -

e o Yo ekt e

R SERUESS N g
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Having consldergd the allegations In the pie_tltlon and the respective presentations
mede {;y the parties at the hearing, the court makiss- the following order:

1 While th
point, Attomey Moynih -n has acknowledged rec ‘}pt of service on behalf of Tr-County

i
petition has only been t—iir‘cu!ated by email andfor fax at this

and, without objection, the courtﬁnds that sewlcé of process has been accomplished,
The Director shail file the original petition wnth the 1% Bircult-Probate Dnvuslon farthwith.
Mr. Moynlhan shall have thirty (30) days from the date of this order to file any
responsive pleadlrrg to the petitlon on behalf of Trln—County

2. Effective as of the date of this arder Todd C. Fahey, Esg. of O & Reno,

P.A., Goncord, New Hampshire, is appointed s a special frustee of Tr-County with all

powers Lnder the by-aws of Tri-Gounty and fhie laws of the State of New Hampshira to

act as the Board of Trustees for Tri-County. Wlth out [imiting the generaljty of the *

furegolng, the speclal‘auattee Is granted all necessary powerto operats the entity and its
programs, coriserve andfor expend charitable assets as appropriate and lawful, manage
personnel matters inclyding declslons regarding tpe hiring andfor termiration of
employment of persdnnel, recruita new board of (iiirectors subject to approval of this
court, review and analyze all records of the entity,é- datermine appropriate levels of
insurance coverage, ensure proper licensing, and file all appropfiate and necessary
repor:s and forms with Federal and State entities,: Inciuding, but not hmltad tothe IRS,
Secrx—:tary of State, and the Charltable Trusts Umt

3 Until further notice from this court, ihe power and authority of the cumrent

b
board of directors Is suspended, but board membgs are not discharged of their duties,

= m = .

v e d v oW
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4, Trl County through its suspended SOard of directors, gxecutive staff, and

employees, shau cooperale fully with the speclal trustee and shall retain all of its

records, of any source or nature, including all electronrc records of any Kind, and shall

make any and all record

trustee, at hls request, throughout the term of the
Should the speclal truste
' file an appropHiate motion with this cont.
5. Within foy

and financlal Informatlon of Tri~County available to the speclal

Fpeclal trustes’s appolntment,

not receive the cooperétion of any such individuals he may

n {14) days of this order, Tri-County shall provlde the speclat

trustee and the Director of Charitabile Trusts with én accurats fist of the names and

addressss of its hoard members and fficers for calendar year 2012, including members

or officers who were new to the board, or left the board during't'hlstime.-

8, The;'spécla trustee shall be responsible.for determining, s preliminafy

matter, whether Tr-County can be a viable hqnmr?ﬂ entity moving forward, what is

necessary te bring finandal stabillty to the entity, arnd how besf to ensure a continulty of

services as are gurrently pravided to its customers,f/servlce population,

7. The speclal trustee may charge a ra{é of up to $275 per hour, to be billed

on a monthly basis to Tr-County, to the attentlon éf the chlef exfacutive offlceror

 Individyal acting in such a capacity, with a copy to éthe Director of Charitable fl’msls.

The speclal trustee may also Inour reasonable and: necessary expenses necessaty to

his work as speciat trustes, which he may bill to Tl‘i-Comty. Tri-Counfy shall pay ths

special trustee’s monthly bill within fifteen (15) day? of recelpt and shall immediately

|
place In reserve $7,500.00 for the purpose of satisfying any special trustes billing. Any

party may requeit a hearing on the special trusteeis bliRs), which the Court will

Veneibm———



schedule at its discretl

on. The special trustee may also be permitted to withdtaw upon

f | ’
motlon to the Court if'lfri—County shall fall to makfe’ payment as required herein.

8. The special trustes may retam the servlces of at Ieast one.additional

professional individual

has suggested that he

fo asslst him with his work asa sPeclal trustee., Attomey Fahey

might retain John Glibert ?s a consultant. Mr. Gilbert's fees shau

be discussed in the ﬂét Instance with the Director and the court shall be notlﬁed of the

billing rate upen agreemert; if an agreement cannot be reached, the issue shall .be

presented to the court

accordance with the p

Bllllng and payment of thls individual to be handled In
rovisions of paragraph 7, a‘bDVe Should the spatial trustee

determnine it necessary to retain additlonal individuals or entities to assist im In his

work, incliiding bankruptoy cotnssl, ha shall file 8 metion requesting autherity to take

such action with the ¢court,

}

5. Commencing January 16, 2013, tht special frustee shall file quarterly

reports with this court

financlal, governance,

regarding his progress, anfd the status of resolving Tr-Gounty's

and compliance issues, (i):opies of these reports shall be

provsded to the Director of Gharitable Trusts The special trustee and the Director-of

Charitable Trusts may

progress of the specla

request Periedic meetmgs; with each other tq discuss the

trustes and the special tr,g.:stee may request a hearing before the .
|

court at his discretion to address any matters un;c'ier his jJurisdiction,

10. The Cou
the Director of Charita

when the issues set fg

[ . .
, upon its own motion, ox; upon motlon of the special trustes, or
ble Trusts, may tennlnatei;the appointment of the special trustee

tth In the Petition have been sallsfactorlly addressed.

o — ot o @
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11.  This order
order shall Iimit the auth

neeessary enforcement

concerns the appoin’nnerfft of a speclal trustes. Nothing In this -
ority. of the Office of the A;ttomey Gerieral to bring ariy other

action agalnst Trl—County,f- Its board, or Its employees or agents,

-
as It deems necessary under Its common law a-nd(o.r statutory authorlty, in-any

appropriafe judicial forum,

3

12. A-status conferencels scheduled for 11:00 a.m, on Tuesday, January

16, 2013 In the 8% Gircuitt Probate Division in Goncord The speclal trustes, -

appropriate and,authorized repyesentatives of Trl—Gounty. and the Director of Chaﬁtab'ls

Trusts, shall be requlfed

to attend this conference’ for the purposes of discussing and

determining an appropriate course of action, as w:lall a8 any other issues as may he

nacessary, A furtherorde

80 ORDERED.

Dated: December 14, 2012

2100 Prea-

r of the court may be issl‘ued.following {hat hearing.

David D, King, Judgs  \_

B gy ——
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Client#: <. o7

ATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

ACORD.. CERTIFIC

5

\RICO2

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
09/03/13

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER

OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE

CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(

5).

policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUCER

CONTACT
NAME:

Davis.Towle Morrill & Everett PNHE:)N'FO Ext): 603 225-6611 Img, No: 603-225-7935
115 Airport Road E-MAIL
P O Box 1260 ADDRESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Concord, NH 03302-1260 msurer A ; Philadelphia Insurance Co.
INSURED wsurer 8 : MEMIC Indemnity Company
Tri County Community Action Program Inc INSURER G+
30 Exchange Street INSURER D:
Berlin, NH 03570 -
INSURERE :
INSURERF :

COVERAGES CERTIFICAT

[E NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INS
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREM

URANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

NT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

'{'-.-?{‘ TYPE OF INSURANCE o] POLICY NUMBER ,ﬁ.‘},‘éﬁ% (ﬁ/’b‘g% LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK1051833 07/22/2013|07/22/2014 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY L RN ey | $100,000
J CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $5,000
|| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $1,000,000
|| | ceNERAL AGGREGATE ~ [ 53,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $3,000,000
[ Jeouer [ 5B [X]ioc s
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK1051833 07/22/2013|07/22/2014 GIMEINED SINGLELIMIT 11,000,000
X| aAnY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
: ALL OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
X| raren AuTos NON-OWNED  PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| A AUTOS (Per accident)
s
A | X|UuMBRELLALIAB | X | occur PHUB429043 07/22/2013|07/22/2014 EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $2,000,000
DED l XI ReTENTION 510000 s
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION. N 3102801186 07/01/2013(07/01/2014 X [WeSTAl | [oT*
0 promeroRpemeREEmve 1y cLexcnacopew _|$500,000
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
it yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - poLicy LimiT | $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space Is required)

** Workers Comp Information **
Included states ~ NH

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH, Dept of Health &
Human Services

129 Pleasant St
Concord, NH 03301-3857

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

UMUI’J
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Todd C. Fahey, Esq. '
Court-Appointed Special Trustee g

Tri-County Community
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited the ac
Program, Inc. (a nonpi¢

and cash flows for the year then ended. These §

Action Program, Inc.
03570

companying statement of ﬁnancml position of Tri-County Community Action
ofit organization) as of Junk 30, 2012, and the related statements of activities
ancial statements are the responsibility of the

Organization’s management. Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. ' : ) .

Except as discussed in the followmg paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally-accepted in the United States of. America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standar(fs issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and {perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the cial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportin'g the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accountlng principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the ovexall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audxt provides a reasonable basis for our oplmon

As more fully described in Note B, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. had not previously
classified the difference between its assets and Eliabi].mes as unrestricted net assets, temporarily
restricted net assets and permanently restricted net:assets based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions. The effects on the financial statements of that departure from those accounting

principles are not reaso:

bly determinable. ;

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as rmght have been determined to be
necessary had the opening balance of the net assets referred to in the preceding paragraph been
susceptible to satisfactory audit tests, the ﬁnancxa.l statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Tri- County Community Action Program, Inc. as of June
30, 2012, and the changes in its net assets and its’ cash flows for-the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note B

I
to the financial statements Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

implemented the requirements of FASB ASC 958 and recorded the current year changes in net assets

by class as unrestricted

net assets, temporarily rcstncted net assets and’ permanently Testricted net

assets based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The accompanying finan
a going concern. For th
unrestricted purposes tha
and others discussed in I
financial statements do n
recorded assets or the an
the entity cannot continue

R P

cial statements have been’ prepared assuming that the entity will continue as
e year ended June 30, 2Q12, the Organization used restricted net assets for
t contravene the donor’s i'esmctlons amounted to $321,749. These factors,

Note Q, indicate that the entxty may be unable to continue in existence. The
ot include any adjmtrnents relating to the recoverability and classification of
nounts and classlﬁcatlons of liabilities that might be necessary in the event
e in existence. P
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The financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2011 were audited by other auditors whosc report thereon, dated March 30, 2012 expressed
an unqualified opinion. As part of our audit of the 2012 financial statements, we also audited the
adjustments described in Note P to the financial {statements that were applied to restate the 2011
financial statements. | In our opinion, such ad_]ustments are appropriate and have been properly :
applied. We were not engaged to audit, review,, or apply any procedures to the 2011 financial
statements of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc. other than in respect of the adjustments {
and, accordingly, we‘%’o not express an opinion or «any other form of assurance on the 2011 financial ¢
statements taken as a whole. !

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 28,
2013, on our consideration of Tri-County Commu’nity Action Program, Inc.’s internal control over -
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, -l
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters, {’I'he purpose of that report is to describe the scope :
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resulis of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal ¢ontrol over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit perchrmed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fornmg an opinion on the financial statements as a
" whole. The Schedule of Punctional Expenses odf pages 21 and 22 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such inforrnation is the
responsibility of man ent and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepar the financial statements or( to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, In our opinion, the information is fmﬂ; stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

—

MASON + RICH PROFES SIONAL ASSOCIATION
Certified Public Accountants

March 28, 2013
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
STATEMENT OF F INAN CIAL POSITION
i
JUNE 30,2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS .
Restricted Deposit Account - Guardianship ‘ b 255,759
Accounts Receivable, Net i 626,033
Inventories . 99,759
Total Current Assets : 981,551
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and Equipment ¢ 10,260,796
Less: Accumulated Depreciation : (3,410,650)
Net Property and Equipment ! 6,850,146
OTHER ASSETS
Restricted Cash - Debt Service r 186,516
Other Assets ’ ; 46,174
Total Other Assets 232,690
TOTAL ASSETS , $ 8064387
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
. i
CURRENT LIABILIT, i
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt ; $ 3,337,972
Current Portion of Lease Payable . . 30,067
Line of Credit % 793,976
Bank Overdraft ! 8,046
Accounts Payable 1,001,434
Accrued Compensated Absences ; 406,689
Accrued Salaries _ i " 114,987
Accrued Expenses ! 14,753
Other Liabilities : 630,759
Total Current Liabilities T 6,338,683
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion , 930,918
Lease Payable, Net of Current Portion : ' 39,603
Interest Rate Swap at Fair Value 114,433
Total Long-Te erm-LiafiIiﬁes 1,084,954
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,423,637
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (321,749)
Temporarily Restricted : 962,499
TOTAL NET ASSETS 640,750
t
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS ; | $ 8064387
The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Fi inafncial Statements
- Page 3-
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

I-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

b

Temporarily
_Unrestricted Restricted Total
SUPPORT AND REVENUES .

Grants and Contracts $ 15732761 8 686,718 $ 16,419,479

Program Funding . 1,935,620 - 1,935,620

Utility Programs ! 671,725 . 671,725

In-Kind Contributions : 411,442 . 411,442

Contributions ; 266,155 80,481 346,636

Fundraising ; 54,929 - 54,929

Renta] Income ; 44,496 - 44,496

Interest Income ! 834 - 834

Gain (Loss) on Disposal , 2,247 - 2,247

Other Revenue 212,551 . 212,551

Total Support and Revenues [ 19,332,810 767,199 20,100,009 -
. ] .
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTION |
Expiration of Program Restrictions { ’ - -
]
OPERATING EXPENSES { -

Agency Fund [ 1515511 . 1,515,511

Headstart i, 2,522,460 - T 2,522,460

Guardianship 1 814,151 . 814,151

Transportation P 1,055,705 - 1,055,705

Volunteer : 129,170 - 129,170

Workforce Development ! 534,984 - 534,984

AQD 1,545,026 - 1,545,026

Carroll County Den i 595,841 . 595,841

Carro}] County Restorative Justice 261,197 - 261,197

Support Center i 311,910 - 311,910

Homeless i 908,177 - 908,177

Energy & Community Development 9,619,568 - 9,619,568

Elder 1,326,239 1,326,239

Total Operating enses . 21,139,939 - 21,139,939
OTHER EXPENSES !

Loss on Interest Rate Swap ; 44,620 - 44,620
TOTAL EXPENSES t__21,184,559 - 21,184,559
CHANGES IN NET TS t (1,851,749) 761,199 (1,084,550)
Net Assets, Beginning of Year as Previously Reported ’t 2,235,260 - 2,235,260
Pricr Pericd Adjustnent, sce Notz P {10526 195 300 (509 960)
Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as Restated : 1,530,000 195,300 1,725,300

Net Assets, End of Year

P8 (321749) § 962499 § _ 640750

i
The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

i

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Decrease in Net Assets

[T

 Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net |

Cash Provided by (Used
Depreciation

in) Operating Activities:

Gain on Disposal of Property
Loss on Interest Rate Swap

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Restricted Deposit Account - Guardianship

Accounts Receivable
Inventories
Other Asscts

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Bank Overdraft
Accounts Payable

Accrued Compensated Absences

Accrued Salaries
Accrued Expenses
Other Liabilities
Deferred Revenue
Total Adjustments

Net Cash Used in Qperating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Disposal jof Property

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Proceeds from Line
Repayment of Long-Ten

. Net Proceeds from Long
Repayment of Capital Le
Net Cash Provided by

NET DECREASE IN C4
AND CASH EQUIVALE

of Credit

m Debt

-Term Debt

zase Obligation
\{Financing Activities

ASH
NTS

Cash and Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Equivalents, End of Year

Supplemental Disclosure

of Cash Flow Information

Cash Paid During the Year For:

Interest

]
'
N

+

ORI

Ty e ey s e,
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§ (1,084,550)

510,568
(2,247)
44,620

(255,759)
401,365

" (20,726)
(13,558)

(222,316)
323,594
11,789
8,387
53,608
630,759

670,752
799,332

(285,218)

2,247

272,036
(107,411)
143,000
(25,288)

282,337

(634)
187,150

—_— 7

$ 186,516

$ 222,133

See Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Fi inancial Statements
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY:ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

" serve in that capacity.

A | NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit
Corporation that operates a wide variety of commumty service programs which are funded primarily
with grants or contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies.

I

A description of the major programs is as follows:
Agency .
The Northern Forest Heritage Park (the Park) provxdes hundreds of individuals with an educational

experience as they vis t a full-size replica loggmg fcamp, interactive exhibits, the Brown Company
House Museum, the s’ Display Gallery and g1ft shop, as well as boat tours, cultural festivals,
demonstrations, and competitions. The Park is also e}vallable for community and family events.

include the management fand allocation of funding received through a
lock Grant, as well as managfernent of the Organizations real estate property.
F

Agency activities als
Community Services

Head Start
Head Start serves hundreds of children and their fannlms in seventeen classrooms at eleven locations
throughout the three cqunties. Research demonstrates that children who are healthy learn better. Due
to this fact, parents in | our program receive assistance in completing medical and dental exams for
their children. To further assist in breaking the cycle of poverty, each family enrolled in Head Start
receives assistance in completing a family needs assessment and subsequent support in achieving
their self-sufficiency and personal improvement goalls

Guardianship !

The Organization’s guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian services for the vulnerable
population of New Hampshire (NH) residents (developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill,
traumatic brain injury, and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer’s, dementia, and multiple medical
1ssu&c) who need a gudrdian and who have no far.mly member or friend willing, able, or suitable to

Transportation :
The Orgamzatlon s transit program provides various transportation services: public bus routes, door-
to-door service by request, long distance medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular
service area, and special trips for the elderly to go s'hoppmg and enjoy other activities that are located
outside the regular service area. Our fleet of 18 wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation
options to the elderly and disabled, as well as to the;'general public.

Volunteer ;

Coos Couniy Reiired & Senior Voiunicers rrogmm (RSVYP) mainiains a minimum corps of 330

volunteers, ages 55 and
50 local non-profit and

older. These volunteers share their skills, life experiences, and time with over
public agencies throughout; Coos County that depend on volunteer assistance

to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volinteérs donate over 50,000 hours yearly.

(Continued on next page)
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TRI.COUNTY COMMU]WT?ACTIONPROGRAM INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Workforce Development
Workforce training programs, with training facllm&e in three towns, prov1de temporary assistance for
needy family (TANF) recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, | nand also place participating TANF recipients in
community-based work experience sites.

Alcohol & Other Drugs (A0D) i

Services provided through the AQOD program mcludc assisting the alcoholic/addicted person on the
road to recovery, thro three phases: Crisis Intervemlon, Sobriety Maintenance, and Assessment
and Referral to appropriate treatment facilities. The Residential Treatment Programs (Friendship
House) provide chemically dependent individuals wﬁh the fundamental toels of recovery, including
educational classes, group and individual counselihg, work and recreational therapy, and attendance
at in-house and community-based alcoholics anony:mous and narcotics anonymous meetings.

1

L

Carroll County Dental
The Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers hlgh quality oral health care to children with NH
Medicaid coverage. We|also serve uninsured and underinsured children and adults using a sliding fee
scale that offers incomerbased discounts for care. The Center accepts most common dental insurances
for those who have commercial dental insurance‘ coverage, A school-based project of the Dental
Center, School Smiles, offers oral health education screening, treatment and teferrals for treatmcnt to
over 1,000 children in 9 schools in the vicinity of the Center.

Carroll County Restorative Justice ;

The Organization’s restorative justice program provides comprehensive alternatives to traditional
court sentencing and dispute resolution within thé framework of Balanced and Restorative Justice.
Two key components of this process are personal accountability for one’s actions (diversion) and
alternative conflict resolution (mediation). Serviccfs are provided by in-house staff, volunteers, and
partnered relations with other local service providers.

Support Center : .

The Organization’s Support Center at Burch Houée is a domestic and sexual violence crisis center
that provides direct service and shelter to v1ct1ms of domestic and sexual violence in Northem
Grafton County. Support groups for victims and,survwors are prov1ded all year long. Violence
prevention programs reach out to students in gxades 4-12 and to civic and community groups, as well
as to other health and human service professionals i in the area.

Homeless ' :
Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project that strives to prevent
individuals and families from becoming homeless, |and assists the already homeless in securing safe,
affordable housing. The| Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients. The
Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to help preserve older housing stock.

Energy and Development, and Community Contact

Energy programs provide fuel assistance, electric dssistance, utility conservation, and weatherization
measures including insulation, air-sealing, encrg§ efficient lighting and refrigerators, hot water
conservation measures, minor home repairs, and ref?lacement windows and doors.

(Continued on next page)
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINA}JCIAL STATEMENTS

i
Offices in eight locatipns are our outreach sites for local participant access. Applications for energy

assistance programs, rental security deposit assmtaﬁce and other emergency services are taken at these
community contact offices. These offices also prov1de mfonnatlon to the Orgamzatlon s clients

assessments; Coos C
Medicare counseling,

supports.

B | SIGNIFICAN

ing; Adult Day Services mctud.mg rmplte for those caring for an adult who

activities of daily living, support groups, caregiver education, and in-home

unty ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource Center, which assists with

Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
{ .

“\

{
T ACCOUNTING POLIC?rIES

Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expensgs are reported on the accrual basis of accountmg. Under this basis, revenues,

other than contributio;

receipt or payment of gash.

Estimates

"and expenses are reported when incurred wn.hout regard to the datc of

-The preparatlon of financial statements in confonmty with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptlons that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities, disclos
the reported amounts

of contingent assets and Habilities at the date of the financial statements, and
of revenues and expenses ,*durmg the reporting period. Accordingly, actual

amounts could differ from those estimates. i

For purposes of the s
financial institutions,

Cash and Cash Equn;Elents

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable
outstanding at year-e

|

atement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand, funds on deposit with
d investments with originalimaturities of three months or less.

I
4
'

e stated at the amount {management expects to collect from balances
Most of the receivables are amounts due from federal and state awarding

agencies and are based upon reimbursement for expenditures made under specific grants or contracts.

A portion of the acco
Dental. Management

ts receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County
has concluded that realization losses on balances outstanding at year-end will

be immaterial. Therefpre, past due receivables are written off at management’s discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write method approximate those of the

allowance method. Manasement selects ar-r-mmtq to be written off afler analyzing past payment

history and the age of the accounts recexvable { The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable. :

Inventories

Inventory consists of donated clothing and houschéld items which are sold through the organizations
thrift store in Lancaster, NH. These items are valued at the price for which they can be sold.

(Continued on next page)
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TRI-COUNTY COMIUNITY;-A CTION PROGRAM, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINAI\?CIAL STATEMENTS

- directly to the related

Inventory also includes weatherization materials which have been purchased in bulk. These items are
valued at the most recent cost. A physical inventory of the thrift store items and weatherization
materials is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

Property and Equipment

Acquisitions of buildin
repairs, maintenance, a
Buildings,
Depreciation is provid
assets. Depreciation’

|

;

1gs, equipment, and improvcxl'ncnts in excess of $5,000 and all expenditures for
ind betterments that materially prolong the useful lives of assets are capitalized.

equipment, and improvements are istated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

ed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related
expense related to assets used solely by an individval program is charged
program, Depreciation expénse for assets used by more than one program is

charged to the program based upon a square footagé or other similar allocation. Depreciation expense
related to administratwc assets is included in the mdn‘ect cost pool and charged to the programs in

accordance with the in

irect cost plan. Mamtcnance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows: i
Buildings and Improvements ’ 20 t0 40 years
Furniture and Equipment 5to 15 years

Change in Accountin

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the Orgamzanon changed its method of accounting for the

difference between its

Principle

assets and liabilities to comply with the requirements of FASB ASC 958 and

reported its net assets according to the three classes as discussed below.

Net Assets

H
i

[
The Organization is required to rcpozt information regarding its financial position and activities
according to classes of net assets: unrestricted {net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and
permanently restricted| met assets. Descriptions of the net asset categories included in the

Organization’s financial statements are as follows:!

i
e

Unrestricted net assets include revenues zu;d expenses and contributions which are not subject
to any donor imposed restrictions. Unrestricted net assets can be board designated by the
Board of Directprs for special projects and. expenditures.

Temporarily r

nct assets are

tricted net assets include contributions for which time restrictions or donor-

imposed restrictions have not yet been met. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted

lassified to unrestricted nct assets and reported in the statement of activities

as net assets released from restriction.

Eermanentlv I

tricted net assets include_{ gifts which require, by donor restriction, that the

corpus be invested in perpetuity and onlyi" the income or a portion thereof (excluding capital
gains restricted by State statute) be made available for program operations in accordance with
donor restrictions. The Organization had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30,

2012.

* (Continued on next page)
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-COUNTY CO]!MUNITTACTIONPROGRAM INC.

Contributions
Contributions receive
support depending on

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

are recorded as unrcstncted temporarily restricted or permanently restricted
e existence or nature of any'idonor restrictions.

i

Donated Materials and Services

Contributed noncash
long the assets must
such stipulations, con

In-Kind Donations

Contributions of do
specialized skills and
at their fair values in t

sets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If donors stipulate how
used, the contributions are; irecorded as restricted support. In the absence of
ibutions of noncash assets are recorded as unrestricted support.

ted services that create or enhance non-financial assets or that require
ould typically need to be pﬁrchased if not provided by donation are recorded
period received.

v
H

] .
advertising to inform the community about the programs it offers and the
. Advertising is expensed as mcurred The total cost of advertising for the year

ended June 30, 2012 was $20,051. |

Tax Status

The Organization is &
Code as an organizati
an entity that is not
deductible contribution

i

empt from federal income ttax under Section 501(c) of the Internal Revenue
n described in Section 501(c)(3). The Organization has also been classified as
private foundation within Ehe meaning of Section 509(a) and qualifies for
s. .
E

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accountmg jbr Uncertainty in Income Taxes, which clarifies

the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition threshold and

measurement attribute

for financial statement reooémtxon and measurement of tax positions taken or

expected to be taken in a tax return. The Orgamzanon does not believe they have taken uncertain tax
positions, therefore, a [liability for income taxes assocxated with uncertain tax positions has not bee
recognized. Additionally the Orgamzanon did not recognize interest or penalties resulting for tax

liabilities associated wi

th recognizing uncertain tax‘posmons for the year ended June 30, 2010.

The Organization’s Federal Form 990 (Return of Orgamzatmn Exempt from Income Tax) for 2009,
2010, and 2011 are subject to examination by the IRS generally for three years after they are filed.

Functional Allocation
The costs of providin
schedule of revenues

of EJqpensa' ,
the various prograras and actlvmes have been summarized on a supplement
d expenses by program.| Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated

among the programs and supporting services benefited. Descriptions of the functional expense

allocations included in

Salaries and re

the Organization’s ﬁnanciall—statements are as follows:
Sy
lated_expenses are allocated to the various program and supporting services

based on actu
timesheet.

al or estimated time employees spend on each function as reported on a

i
I
|

(Continued on next page)
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITYM CTION PROGRAM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i
Wortkers Compensation expenses are chargéd to each program based upon the classification
of the each employee and allocated to the vanous program based upon the time employees
spend on each function.as noted above. '

Paid Ieave is charged to a leave pool and is;“allocated to each program as a percentage of total
salaries. : :

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe ﬁmeﬁt Pool. These expenses include employer
payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental insurance and unemployment
compensation. | The pool is allocated to each program based upon a percentage of salaries.

{
Depreciation expense is allocated to each p}ogmm based upon an analysis of square footage.
The same calculation is used to allocate othér building costs including. insurance.
Insurance: automobile insurance is al]ocatéd to programs based on vehicle usage; building
liability insurance is allocated to program}; based on square footage of the buildings; and

insurance for furniture and equipment_is a;llocated to programs using the book basis of the

insured assets. |

3
The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and are allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of progt?m expenses. The expenses include items such as
general liability insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which

cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proplosal for the Paid Leave, Fringe Benefits and Other
Indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. The proposal effective for July
1, 2011 received provisional approval and extended approval through April 30 2013.

(
i
1

Fair Value Measurements ,

Fair value is defined as|the price that would be re¢eived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
(i.e. the "exit price”) in|an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The accounting standards for fair values tstabhshes a hlerarchy for inputs used in measuring fair
value that maximizes the use of observable mputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by

requiring that the most jobservable mputs be used:awhen available. Observable inputs are inputs that -

market participants wonld use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data

obtained from sources independent of the Company Unobservable inputs are mputs that reflect the -

Company’s assumptions about the assumptions mérket pamclpants would use in pricing the asset or
liability developed based on the best informatiori available in the circumstances. The hierarchy is
broken down into three levels based on the rehabxhty of inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Valuations ba;fd on quoted prices in ac'uve markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company has the ability to access. Since valuatlons are based on quoted prices that are readily and
regularly available in an|active market, valuation of these products does not enta11 a significant degree

of judgment. :

1
!
i
i
5

(Continued on next page)
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Level 2 - Valuation is determined from quoted pnces for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in markets that are not active or by model-based techniques in
which all significant inputs are observable in the market

Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement. The degree of judgment exercised uf determining fair value is greatest for instruments
categorized in Level 3, : ’

The availability of observable inputs can vary and ;s affected by a wide variety of factors, including,
the type of asset/liablﬁrt;’{j1 whether the asset/liability is established in the marketplace, and other
characteristics particular to the transaction. To the cxtent that valuation is based on models or inputs
that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair value requires more
judgment. In certain cases, the inputs used to mwmre fair value may fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes the level in the fair value hierarchy within
which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in ns entirety.

Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market participant rather
than an entity-specific measure. Therefore, even when market assumptions are not rwd.lly available,
assumptions are required to reflect those that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. - : .

See Note I for information related to the use of fair value measurements.

I

C| CONCENTRATION OF RISK -

The Organization maintains cash balances at various financial institutions. The balances are insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. Cash deposits at these
financial institutions at June 30, 2012 did not exceed $250 000. There was no amount of cash
uninsured or uncollateralized as of June 30, 2012. i

As disclosed in Note D, the Organization mamtams a deposit account on behalf of clients who
participate in the Guardianship Service Program. The total deposit balance in the account at June 30,
2012 was $255,759. The total amount uninsured and uncollateralized at June 30, 2012 was $5,759.

D| CASHRESTRICTIONS §

The Organization is required to maintain a deposii account with a bank as part of the loan security
agreement disclosed at Note K. The required balance in the account is $52,497 and is restricted from
withdrawal except to make payments of debt s&ww or as approved by the US Department of

PRAY
A

N

Agri'culture. Amounts| withdrawn (o make payncnss of debt service must be Acpu-xuahud Wil
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The balance as of June 30,
2012 was $93 and the Organization was not in compliance with this requirement.
i :
The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as part of a bond issue
as disclosed at Note K.| The required balance in the account is $186,516 and is equal to the interest
. t

(Continued on next page)
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

payments on the bond ﬁr a 12 month period. The balance as of June 30, 2012 was $186,516 and the
Organization was in compliance with this requiremént-

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in the Guardianship
Services Program. The balance in the account is reslncted for use on behalf of these clients and an
offsetting liability is reported on the financial statements as other current liabilities. As reported at
Note F, the Organization withdrew $375,000 from’thxs account during the 2012 fiscal year which is
reported as additional liability in other current habllmes The total deposit balance in the account at
June 30, 2012 was $253,759. The total current hablhty related to this account at June 30, 2012 was
$630,759.

E| PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT _
}

For the year ended June|30, 2012, the balance in prc::perty and equipment consisted of the following:

Buildings and Improvements ! $ 7,686,861

Furniture and Equipment ‘ 1,983,468

Land R A 590.467

Total [ 10,260,796
Less Accumulated Depreciation oo - : (3.410.650)

. Total Property and Equipment, Net $ 6,850,146

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of state and federal
agencies under grant agreements. The equipment,f whose book value is immaterial to the financial
statements, is not included in the Organization’s pr0pcrty and equipment totals.

R DR ¢ o I,

Depreciation expense amounted to $510,568 for thq year ended June 30, 2012,

¥
i

F| COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance '
The Organization received funds under several fcdiéral and state grants. Under the terms of the grants
the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations mcludmg use and time restrictions. If
the Organization was formd to be noncompliant ; iwith the provisions of the grant agreements, the -

Organization could be liable to the grantor or face d1scontmuatlon of funding.

——

Environmental Contingencies :

On March 30, 2009 the Organization’s Board of Dlrectors agreed to secure owncrs}up of a I.2-acre
site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2 buildings on this site designated as the East Wing
and West Wing Buildings which were formerly used as a research and development facility for the
Berlin Mills Company. | The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2, 2012, the State of
New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the Department) noted that the remedial
actions for the exterior soils and parts of the East Wing Building had been completed to the
Departments satisfaction. In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West
(Continued on next page)
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TRI-COUNTY COWUNIT}:’ACTIONPROGRAM INC.

NOTES TO THE FINA?\ICIAL STATEMENTS

1
i

Wing Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and environment
provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further structural deterioration. If further
deterioration occurs and contaminants are released into the environment the Organization could be
required to take additional action including contain'inent and remediation.

Furthermore, the Organization was provided nonce of due diligence to complete a fence that would
prevent access to contaminants on the property. The fence would ultimately limit the Organization

exposure to potential

liability from unsuspecting Lguests on the property. As of June 30, 2012 the

Organization had not completed construction of the fence.

Other Liabilities

‘r
L

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 the Organization transferred $375,000 from the

Guardianship checking account into the Org

Ltlons operating account. The funds held in the

Guardianship account belong to clients who argé serviced by TCCAP’s Guardianship Services
Program and are entrusted to the Organization for the benefit of these clients. Management has

identified the transfer

G| . LEASE AGREEMENTS

and has recorded a habﬂlty; faor the amount due to the Guard1ansh1p account.

- This amount is recorded on the financial statcments as a current liability.

'

3
‘

Capital Leases
The Organization leases equipment from Leaf Fmanclal Corporation under a capital lease. The
economic substance of the lease is that the Orgamzatxon is financing the acquisition of the assets
through the lease, and accordingly, it is recorded in the Organization’s assets and liabilities.
The following is an analysis of the leased assets included in Equipment;
Equipment ' : t . $ 159277
Less accumulated depreciation _ 127,422
Net Book Valug | $ 31855
Future minimum payments under capital\ leases are Ias follows:
Year e:(:jpg June 30, . '
2013 ' : $ 39875
2014 ! 39,875
2015 3,935
- Total Future Payments L 83,685
~ Less Amount Representing Interest : ~(14.015)
Present Vaiue of Future Paymenis g 69,670
Less Current Portion ' _ (30,067
Long-Term Portion $ 39,603

Interest expense was $19,021 for the year ended Ju;ile 30,2012.

(Continued on next page)
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'TRE-COUNTY COMMUNITY 4 CTION PROGRAM, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating Leases

The Organization has entered into several lease comg'_nitments for space. Leases under non-
cancelable lease agreements are as follows: : ' '

Program

Carroll County Restorative Justice

Head Start

Head Start

Head Start

Head Start
Guardianship Services

North Country Tfansit
Homeless Outreach & C
Community Contact
Workplace Success

Additionally the Organis
The annual rent expense

ommunity Contact

+

I;! Term

Oct 1, 2011 to Sept 30, 2014
Apr-1, 2011 toMar 31,2013
Apr 1, 2013 to Mar 31,2018
apr 1, 2018 to Mar 31, 2023
Aprl, 2023 to Mar 31, 2023
iSep 1, 2010 to Aug 31,2011
Sep 1, 2011 to Aug 31, 2012
iSep 1, 2012 to Aug 31, 2013
!:'Sep 1, 2013 to Aug 31, 2014
iTan 1, 2011 to Dec 31, 2011
:Jan 1,2012 to Dec 31, 2012
,fJun 1, 2010 to May 31, 2011
é‘m 1, 2011 to May 31, 2012
[ Jun 1, 2012 to May 31, 2013
| Jan 1, 2010 to Dec 31, 2011
;’fJan 1, 2010 to Dec 31, 2011
 Jan 1, 2010 to Dec 31,2011
; Mar 1,2012 to Apr 28, 2013
! Jul 1, 2011 to Jun 30, 2013

i Jul 1,2011 to Jua 30, 2013

¢ Jul 1, 2011 to Jun 30, 2013
i

$

Annual
Payment

2,160
28,878
30,011
31,143
32,276

17,700 -

18,300
18,900
19,800

15,000 -

15,000
10,200
10,200
10,200
10,356
10,704
10,944

2,880
20,088
11,400
26,371

zation has several facilitie?S which are Jeased on a month to month basis.
for the leased facilities w:as $218,058 for the year ended June 30, 2012.

(Continued on next page)
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TRIFCOUNTY COMWUNITY,? CTION PROGRAM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The future minimum lease payments on the above lea:_ses for the year ending June 30 are as follows:
!

2013 P ' $ 140,621
2014 Eoo : 57,149
2015 i 33,851
2016 ; 30,011
2017 : 30,011

The Organization has available a $45,000 unsecurcd line of credit with Northway Bank, at June 30,
2012. Borrowings under the line bear interest at 6. 50% perannum, and totaled $45,000 at June 30,
2012. The line of credit is unsecured.

The Organization has [available a $800,000 line of; credit with TD Bank which was secured with
real estate mortgages and assignments of leases and rents on various properties as disclosed in the
line of credit agreement. Borrowings under the hnc bear interest at 4.25% per annum, and totaled
$729,273at June 30, 2012. The line is subject to rcntcwal on January 31, 2013.

The Orgamzanon bas available a $25,000 line of credxt with Bank of NH which is secured with all

business assets of the| Northern Forest Heritage Pjg.rk. Borrowings under the line bear interest at
4.25% per annum, and|totaled $20,003 at June 30, 2012.

1| ACCRUED VACATION

e v g

Employees of the Organization are eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 240 days. Accrued
vacation totaled $406,689 at June 30, 2012. H

J| DERIVA INSTRUMENTS

As disclosed in Note K|, the note payable to bank béars interest monthly of 69% of the sum of the one
month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) p'lus 3.25% (when the Organization’s debt service
coverage ratio is 1.10) or 3.00% (when the Orgamzaﬂon s debt service coverage ratio is 1.20). The
Organization’s purpose in entering into the swap arrangement was to hedge against the risk of interest
rate increases on the rc:lated variable rate debt and not to hold the instrument for trading purposes.
The Organization pays |interest at a fixed 3.85%. The arrangement is scheduled to expire on August
2040. The notional amount of the contract was $3,145,412. Accordingly, the swap arrangement,
which is a derivative financial instrument, is classified as a cash flow hedge.

b

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the fair valué of the interest rate swap was $114,433 and the
unrealized loss was $44,620. The fair value of the swap is included on the balance sheet as a long-
term liability. No amounts have been reclaséiﬁcd as interest expense and based upon the
Organization’s intent to hold the derivative until expiration they do not expect to reclassify any
unrealized gains or losses to interest expense. '

i

' {Continued on next page)
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TRINCOUNTY COWUNITI%A CTION PROGRAM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

K| LONG-TERM DEBT
The Organization’s long-term debt consists of the fcéllowing at June 30, 2012:

i
1. Note payable to lending institution, payable in 360 monthly installments
of $484 including interest at 5% per annum. Secured by general business
assets. Final installment due March 2024. ' : 3 51,140

2. Note payable to lending institution, payable ui 360 monthly installments
of $1,496 including interest at 4.50% per annum Secured by general
business assets. Final installment due June 2024 166,619

3. Note payible to lending mstxtuhon, payable in 360 monthly installments
of $1,664 including interest at 5% per annum.; Secured by general
business assets. Final installment due Januarj 2027. 204,783

4. Note payable to lending institution, payable i m 360 monthly installments
of $292 including |interest at 4.75% per annum Secured by general _
business assets. Final installment due April 2030 B 41,943

5. Note payable to lending institution, payable i in 360 monthly installments
of $74 including interest at 4.75% per annum.E Secured by general :
business assets. Final installment due June 2029 10,338

6. Note payable to a bank, payable in 120 month'ly installments of $457
including interest at 4.25% per annum. Secured by a first mortgage on a »
business condo. Final installment due December 2015. 18,693

7. Note payable to a bank, payable in 120 monthly installments of $3,799
including interest at 6.75% per annum. Securéed by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due {April 2021. 486,961

8. Bond payable to a bank, payable in monthly installments of $15,260
including interest adjusted by a swap agrecmcnt with a fixed rate of
3.85%, adjusted by the difference between lhe fixed amount and a rate of
interest equal to 69% of the sum of the 1 month LIBOR rate plus 3.25%
(when the Organization’s debt service covcrage ratio is 1.10) or 3.00%
(when the Organization’s debt service coverage ratio is 1.20). Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage of various properties and

assignments of renls at various properties. Fixlrial installment due August
2040. 3,145,413

9. Note payable to a related party, interest accrue':zs 6% per annum, no
monthly installments, full principal amount plus interest is due August

2012. ; _ 43,000
10. Note payable to a non-profit organization, interest accrues 6% per annum,

no monthly installments, full principal plus m‘terest due during the
Organizations fiscal year end 2013, ’ 100,000
Total Long-Term Debt o $ 4,268,890
Less Current Portion r 3337.972
Long-Term Debt Net of Current ‘ 5 930918

l (Continued on next page)
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loans 1 through 6 listed

TRI

COUNTY COMMUNITY%A CTION PROGRAM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINAN;CIAL STATEMENTS

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows foff the years.ended June 30:
Years Ending June 30, ' '
2013 : $ 3,337,972
2014 E‘ 46,726
2015 49,276
2016 50,078
2017 49,101
' Thereafter 735,737
Total ?" $_ 426889

As described at Note D,

the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account with a bank for
above. The Orgamzatlon was not in compliance with this requirement.

Failure to meet this requirement may be construed by the Government to constitute defauit.

As described at Note D, |the Organization is reqmredtto maintain a reserve account with a bank related
to loan 10 listed above.| Additionally, the Orgamzatlon is required to maintain a debt coverage ratio

~ of 1:1.10 as stipulated jn the loan agreement. As of June 30, 2012, the Organization was not in

compliance with all covenants. As a result, the amount outstanding at June 30, 2012 is included with

as a current liability on th

e statement of financial poslition.

L | RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes Payable — Related Party

As disclosed in Note X,

the Organization has a Joan payable to the wife of the Former Chief

Executive Officer. See Note X for the terms of the niote payable.

As disclosed in Note K, |the Organization also has 4 loan payable to a non-profit organization which
also provides pass-through state and federal fundmg for some of the Orgamzatlons Programs. See

M | NETASSETS

‘Note J for the terms of the note payable.

4
I
.

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of grams and other unexpended revenues subject to donor
restrictions and available for the following purposes: ‘as of June 30, 2012:
NH Charitable Foundation Grant, Mt. Jasper . s 46,650
Privaiely Funded Fuel Assisiunce Emergency Fund 12,005
Privately Funded Fuel d,-:xlFistance Program 143,916
Federal and State Funding for the Head Start ; 361,817
Federal Community Services Block Grant 168,966
Private Grant for the Alcohol and Other Drug Progrz%m 50,000
! (Continued on next pége)
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COUNTY COWI]]VIT'I%ACTIONPROGM}% INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRI

Notre Dame Project ‘ 14,939

Department of Energy Weatherization Program 22,827
State Funding for Tyler|Blain House ' ’ 9,599
Federal Funding for North Country Transit : V 16,352
Federal Funding for the|Heating Repair and Replaa;:ment Program 37,312
Federal Funding for the Sustainable Energy Resource 22,421
Federal Funding for the|Adult and Dislocated Worki'ar Program 20,583
Federal Funding for the Low Income Home Energy-A331stance Program 26,849
Other Miscellaneous Programs | . - 7.659

? 3262490

N| IN-KIND CO UYIONS i
The Organization records the value of in-kind}contributions according the accounting policy
described in Note B. The Head Start, Transportation and Elder Programs rely heavily on voluateers
who donate their services to the organization. Thcxc services are valued based upon the comparative
market wage for similar|paid positions. The orgammtxon is also the beneficiary of a donation in kind
in the form of below market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder
Programs. The value of the in kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental payment and
the market rate for the plopexty based upon a recent/appraisal.

A { '
Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of the Organization.

* The financial statements do not reflect any value for these donated services since there is no reliable

basis for making a reasonable determination.

0| RETIREMENT PLAN ,
The Organization has a 403(b) tax deferred annulty plan covering all employees. Each employee
may elect salary reducth)n agreement contnbutlons in accordance with limits allowed in the Internal
Revenue Code. ;

The employer shall match each dollar of a pa:tl:icipant's elective deferrals up to 5% of each

participant’s annual salary. The Organization's retirement contribution was $167,220 for year ended

Tune 30, 2012. !

P| PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS ‘
The prior year financial statements were restated tof;eﬂect the following misstatements.

Cash was overstated and Accounts Payable was ufhderstated by checks which were issued but not

mailed in the amount of $141,522. This had no cfféct on net assets.
:
t

(Continued on next page)

- Page 19 -

e

T T

e



<\

TRI-COUNTY COMMIHVITYEACTION PROGRAM, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINAN:CIAL STATEMENTS i

.30, 2011.

“on June 30, 201 1.

Cash was overstated by $23,258 due to an unk}mwn reconciliation discrepancy between the
reconciliation and the actual general ledger balance. The result of this adjustment reduces
unrestricted net assets as reported on June 30, 201 1.

Cash was overstated by $460,215 due to an unlcnown outstanding debit to cash used as a reconciling
item for multiple bank statements going back more 'than a year. The Organization is continuing to
research this item, however, the result of this ad_]usﬁnent reduces unrestricted net assets as reported
on June 30, 2011. .

i

Payroll liabilities and the related expenses were understated by $106,600 because accrued payroll
was not posted in the prior ymr This ad_]ustment reduces unrestricted net assets as reported on June

. ————

Accrued employee benefits and the related cxpenses were overstated by $109,421. Thrs adjustment
increases unrestricted net assets as reported on June 30 2011.

Accumulated depreciation and depreciation expensq was understated by $33,763. “This adjustment
t assets as reported on June 30 2011,

value of payments rather than being discounted baseiii upon the effective interest rate. The effect of
this adjustment was an increase to unrestricted net as's'ets as reported on June 30, 2011.

Accounts receivable for|the Dental Center and related income were understated by $49,879. The
effect of this adjustment was an increase to umvestncted net assets as reported on June 30, 2011.

Long term liabilities were understated by $69, 813 due to the fair value of the swap not being
recorded in the financial statements. This ad_]ustmeht decreased unrestricted net assets as reported

Deferred revenue was oyerstated by $51,508. Tlu5|adjustment increases unrestricted net assets as
reported on June 30, 201]1.

Accounts rece1vab]e wag overstated by $74,390 for amounts recorded as amounts receivable on

‘ grants which were not valid claims. This ad_]ustment decreases unrestricted net asset as reported on

June 30, 2011.

Ternporarily restricted met assets were understated by $195,300 related to contributions received
with donor use restrictiops which had not been cxpeﬁuca for the purpose icnded. This adjusiment
resulted in an increase in temporarily restricted net assets and a decrease in unrestricted net assets as
reported on June 30, 2011.

(Continued on next page}
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INTY COMMUNITY, ACTION PROGRAM, INC.
OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRI-COL
N

GOING CONCERN

Q|
The accompanymg financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Organization will

continue as a going concemn. As shown in the ﬁnanc:al statements the Organization incurred a net
loss of $1,078,642 for June 30, 2012. At June 30, 2012 current liabilities exceed current assets by

$5,357,132. At June 30,/2012 the Organization’s total assets exceed total liabilities, however, certain

net assets are temporarily restricted for specific pmlposes as disclosed in Note M. As a result, the

Organization used restricted net assets for unrestricted purposes that contravene the donor’s

restrictions which total $321,749.

As disclosed in Note K, in connection with a note payable to a bank, the Organization has violated
certain provisions of the loan agreement. At June 30 2012 the bank had not demanded immediate
payment on outstandmg rincipal balance, howcver,;due to the violation of the agreement the note is
. A significant portion of the Organization’s operatmg assets are pledged

and foreclosure by the bank would seriously impair the Organization’s

13 .

i -
The Organization plans to continue as a going concein by instituting cost reductions for expenses that
have been determined ko be excessive and discretionary. Management has also identified
inefficiencies throughout the Qrganization due to lack of oversight by previous management and
anticipates substantial cost savings opportunities as a:!rcsult of implementing new operational systems.
Additional areas that will be addressed include evaliating building vacancies and renting or selling
unused space, increasing fundraising efforts, and increase revenues from programs offering services
that generate unrestricted revenues. '

continued existence.

i
t
[y
'

R| SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 28, 2013, the date which the financial
statements were avaxlable to be issued.

On December 14, 2012, a probate judge suspendedithe board of directors and appointed a special
trustee to oversee the operations of the Organization at the request of the state Attorney General’s
office after the resignation of the Chief Executive Ofﬁcer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
in early December.

t
D Bank was converted to an amortizing term loan on November 14, 2012, .
al real estate mortgage and assignment of leases and rents was added as

The line of credit with TI
Additionally, a commerci
collateral at that time.

nce which had been transfofrred from the Guardianship account was repaid

A portion of the cash bala
ents serviced by the Guardianship Program of $224,000.

. leaving a liability to the cli

In January of 2012, there was a fire in a building owned by the Organization that was used as a thrift
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store. The Organization ha

Various parties were proj

casualty loss, and negligen

d adequate i insurance to covcr losses suffered by the fire.

vided notices of forthcommg claims for damages on account of theft,
ce due to misappropriation of the Organization’s assets.
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-} TR -COUNTY COMMUNI TY ACTION

)
; PROGRAM Inc.
- ‘\x/‘*"‘ Serving Coos, Carroll &:Grafton Counties
30 ExchingeiStreet, Berlin,N.H 03570 « (603) 752-7001 - 'Toll Free: 1-800-552-4617 + Fax: (603) 752-7607
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Website: http: //www tccap.org
i

MISSION STATEMENT

¥

bunty CAP is a group of people and projects
ted to improving the lives and well-being
Lew Hampshire's peopl_e and communities.

!
t
3

We provide opportunitties and support

eople to learn and grmf/v in self-sufficiency,
to get involved in help:ing their neighbors
proving the conditidns}in their communities.

F-Cdunty Community Action Programs...
Helping people, changing lives.
H
|
UNITY ACTION PR’PGRAM Inc. Is a private, non-profit

501(C) 3 corporation thPt is dedicated to 1mp{ovmg the lives and well being of New

Hampshire’s people
opportunities and supp
involved in helping

TRI-COU}

and communities. Formed on May 18, 1965, we provide
ort for people to learn and grow in self—sufficnency and get
r their neighbors and ?mprovin g the conditions in their
communities.

A : .

NTY COMMUNITY ACTION PRPGRAM, Inc.

...Helping péople, changing lives.

Weatherization
(603) 752-7105

AcD
(603) 869-2210

Administral

(603) 762-7

North Couy
Transit

(603)752-1744

(603)752-3010

ion Tamworth Dental Energy Programs
001 Center (603) 762-7100
323-7645
try North Country
Elder Programs R.S.V.P

(603) 752-4103
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. The Board of Directors was

Community Action and the

{\ TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION

(603

00288 on December 14, 20
Community Action Progran
satisfactorily addressed. Th

The Special Trustee is now
of a newly-reconstituted Ba

[d)]

PROGRAM Inc.

erving Coés, Carroll & Grafton Counties

30 Exchange Street, Bedm N.H 03570
752-7001 - Toll Free: 1- 800-552-4617 Fax: (603) 752-7607
Website: http://www.tccap.org - " E-mail: admin@tccap.org
Chief Operating Off'cer' Peter Higbee
t

Tri-County Community .x%ction Program, Inc.

i
Board of Dij'ectors

been suspended in Coos County Probate Court Case #314-2012-EX-
12. Todd C. Fahey, Esq' was appointed special trustee of Tri-County
n until such time as the issues resulting in his appointment have been
e special trustee holds all powers under the by-laws of Tri-County
laws of the State of Nevy Hampshire to operate the organization.

] :
gathering names of individuals for potential appointment as members
ard of Directors sometime during the summer of 2013.

RO, = MY




MICHAEL W. COUGHLIN, M.S.

Chief Executive - Nonprofit Sector
Complex, Multi-Site Operations «» Revenue & Margin Growth

Strategic Partnerships '
Community & Public Engagement

Motivating and results driven; recognized for;

v’ Strategic planning and financial management v" Entrepreneurial spirit

v Mentoring & developing inspired leaders v’ Assuring highest quality standards
v’ Innovation, marketing and branding v' Passionate advocacy for mission

EDUCATION

Master of Science, Social Work - Columbia University, New York, New York
Bachelor of Arts - Quinnipiac University, Hamden, Connecticut

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

REHABILITATIVE RESOURCES, INC. 2012 - 2013
One of the larger agencies providing services to people with developmental disabilities in
Massachusetts. Serving hundreds of clients in 44 residential facilities, employment supports and
day habilitation programs all over the state. $25 million in annual revenue and over 600 full and

part-time staff.
« CEO

Recruited to this position at al'\ agency in need of change, in a time of distress. Followed a 31-year
CEOQO, and reporting to a Board of Directors that expects transformation. Re-configured the senior

leadership team, designed a five-year strategic planning process, and began agency-wide healing
and cultural re-invigoration.

+ Organizational Devejopment: Leveraged the agency’'s considerable reputational and
financial assets into distinct advantages in preparing for its 5-year strategic plan.
» Met nearly every employee directly, either through individual team meeting visits, or
through three regional town hall-style events, the first time this has happened.
o Launched company-wide strategic planning process, involving stakeholders at every
level and region of the organization.

« Executive Development: Reorganized senior management team into a streamlined,
truly decision-making group. Set the conditions and expectations to become a high
performing team. Secured executive coaching for leaders where necessary.

+ Community and Market Development: Met with all major funders to understand their
perceptions of the company, and to re-set a new focus on customer service excellence.
Performed evaluations of the competitive environment, and began to build strategic
coalitions with potential partners for new business.




MICHAEL W, COUGHLIN, M.S. Resume Page Two

ARIZONA'’S CHILDREN ASSOCIATION 2011 to 2012
Arizona’s oldest mutti-service nonprofit, located in every county in the state, serving over 45,000
children and families every year in over 20 different programs, including behavioral healith,
substance abuse, foster care] $40 million in annual revenue and nearly 750 full and part-time staff.

» CEO
Recruited to this position as successor to a 20-year CEO. Executed a financial tumaround: moving
a projected $750,000 deficit to break-even status within five months.

» Organizational Development: Stabilized financials and worked with Board and staff to
create an aggressive five-year plan for growth:
- Engaged program|leaders, Finance team and fundraising to overcome previous year's
losses and improve performance in turning around current year financials.
- Re-organized senior program leaders from regional structure to lines of business,
resuiting in much better program consistency and communication with staff.

¢ Executive Development: Empowered Executive team to make decisions without micro-
managing. Created aq environment where creativity and execution exist side by side.

s Community Relationf: Reached out to community leaders, funders, donors, competitors
and potential partners| Made sure to be accessible, to offer our agency’s support.

GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND 2007 to 2010
Serving Maine, New Hampshire and Vermont, with $60 million in annual revenue. Employing 1400
people and serving over 20,000 individuals per year with services including developmental
disability, brain injury and behavioral health. 25 stores and 30 program locations in three states.

» CEO
Recruited to this position to create and execute a new strategic plan. Increased annual revenue by
$20 million in three years to $60 miilion. Doubled the number of clients served during the same
period. Greatly improved employee and community relations.

¢ Organizational Development: Created Goodwill's strategic plan for Board approval,
carried out its plans and achieved exceptional results:

- Grew state and federal revenue by $10 million per year through increases in grants, fees
and philanthropy.
- Maximized growth of retail business, earning $10 million in new profitable revenue
annually within three years.

- Initiated and implemented two acquisitions of other nonprofits.

- Increased agency margins each year, exceeding $1.9 million in F.Y. 2010.

- Championed new initiatives in quality improvement, employee relations and safety.

o Executive Development: Stabilized and grew a strong executive team, breaking down
silos to achieve trust and true team performance. Created learning opportunities and career
development for staff at all levels.

o Community and Government Relations: Increased Goodwill's profile through improved
marketing, branding and partnerships with other organizations. Built strong relations with
Departments of Health and Human Services, Attomey General's Office and Congressional
delegations. Greatly expanded engagement with volunteers.
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GENESIS BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, Laconia, New Hampshire 2002 to 2007
One of ten community mental health programs licensed by the Division of Behavioral Health in
New Hampshire. $8 million organization provides cormprehensive mental health care.

» Executive Director
Recruited to this organization to assume management responsibility and implement an
aggressive turnaround. Guided management team to drive growth and service quality. Grew
revenue by 35%, generating over $1 million in new margins, in a time of shrinking state funds.

» Organizational Development: Directed organizational analysis, strategic planning and
company-wide initiatives. Returned organization and balance sheet to fiscal health.

» Executive Development: Led a successful management restructuring, stabilizing the
executive team. Helped Board of Directors become a stronger, more cohesive group.

« Community & Government Relations: Built a bridge to community and government
through marketing and education events as well as personal contacts.

WARREN SHEPELL CONSULTANTS, Toronto, Ontario 2000 to 2001
One of Canada’s leading behavioral health firms, supporting 1500+ client organizations and
generating $35 million annually. Ranked one of "50 best managed pnvate companies in Canada” by
Arthur Andersen and Financial Post,

» Vice President, Operations

Managed nation-wide counseling operations provided by mental health professionals and para-
professionals. Managed a $19 million budget.

» Staffing: Led a national network of over 1100 Doctorate and Master’s level professionals,
providing service to over 70,000 clients per year

+ Service / Network Management & Expansion: Directed the management of 28 offices
coast to coast, to support new contracts. Played key role in 18% one-year revenue growth
and 20% profit margins.

« Business Development & PR: Participated in sales efforts, resulting in winning key
accounts. Represented company as a media spokesperson,

CHC- WORKING WELL, Mississauga, Ontario 1989 to 2000
One of Canada’s largest behavioral health providers. Contracts with 1200+ client organizations,
generating $30 million annually.

> Vice President, Research & Development - 1998 to 2000
> National Director, Client Services - 1995 to 1998
> Regional Manager, Client Services - 1993 to 1995
> Area Manager, Client Services - 1991 to 1993
> Employee Assistance Counselor - 1989 to 1991

Extensive Board service involvement




Résumé

February, 1999 to
present

February, 1996 to
January 1999

September, 1987 to
August, 1996

October, 1986 to
February, 1996

September, 1980 to
October, 1986

September, 1977 to
September, 1980

February, 1975 to
August, 1977

Peter G. Higbee

Professional Experience

Tri-County CAP, Inc.
Berlin, NH

Deputy Director/Chief Operating Officer, responsible for organizational development, IT, and
planning and management support for large (275 employees) human service agency’s compre-
hensive array|of programs and projects. Chief Operating Officer since June, 2012.

Tri-County CAP, Inc.
Berlin, NH

Planning & Administrative Coordinator, responsible for planning and management support
for comprehensive array of human service programs.

College for Lifelong Learning, University System of NH (now Granite State College)
Littleton & Berlin, NH offices, various sites

Teaching Faculty, responsible for courses in Early Childhood Education Degree and Certificate
programs, including Parent-Staff Relations, Guiding the Behavior of Young Children, Pre-school
Child Development, and Foundations of Early Childhood Education.

Tri-County CAP, Inc. - Head Start
Berlin, NH

Director of Head Start program, responsible for overall operation of comprehensive child and
family development program offering center-based and home-based services fo 238 families
through 10 community-based sites. $1 million” budget, 50" staff.

Tri-County CAP, Inc. - Head Start
Berlin, NH

Education/Special Needs/Mental Health Coordinator, responsible for planning and supervis-
ing implementation of Education, Special Needs and Mental Health services to up fo 177 Head
Start children and families, through community-based staff.

Tri-County CAP, Inc. - Head Start
No. Stratford & Littleton, NH

Head Teacher, responsible for classroom of up fo 20 3- to 5-year-old Head Start children, in-
cluding integration of nutrition and health services, parent support and parent involvement.
Classes included special needs children.

Coppermine School

t Participant in the co-operative founding and operation of an alternative, un-
graded, parent-run elementary school, including Teaching at the primary level.

Education

State College at Boston
Boston, MA
B.A., English, minor in Psychology, 1982




Peter G. Higbee,
Page 2

Nov., 2011 to pre-
sent

2008 to present

1999 to 2009

1998 to present

1988 to 1998

1986 to 1996

1984 to 1998

Education (continued)

Additional coursework includes Psychology courses at Plymouth (NH) State College and Lesley
College (Cambridge, MA); Adult and Early Childhood Education courses at Antioch New Eng-
land Graduate School (Keene, NH); and Management courses at Texas Tech (Dallas, TX) and

Management|Fellows program at The Anderson Graduate School of Management at UCLA (Los
Angeles, CA)| Mediation training includes child and family and victim-offender medjation.

Organizations & Memberships

City of Berlin, NH
Berlin, NH

Elected City Council Member, Ward Ill.

Berlin Industrial Development and Park Authority
Berlin, NH

Authority Mmeer, appointed by Mayor and Council. Vice-Chair 2010 - present.

North Country Health Consortium
Littleton, NH

Board Member of organization of Northern NH health and social service providers, including
area hospitals, home health agencies, etc. Served on Technology committee, Oral Health Work
Group and Executive Committee, including five terms as Vice-President of NCHC.

NH CAP Association -- Technology Committee
Statewide, N

Committee Member (currently Co-Chair) of statewide technology Committee overseeing de-
velopment and implementation of a statewide electronic intake, referral, and case management
system for the six NH CAPs and the Governor’s Office of Energy & Community Services.

Ammonoosuc Community Health Services
Littleton, NH

Board Member 1988 - 98, President, 1989 - 95. During tenure as president, agency received
Corporate Fund Award for Management Excellence; constructed new facility; and merged with
rural health care provider to form Community Health Center Network.

New Hampshire Head Start Directors’ Association
Statewide, N

Association Member, President 1989 to 1994. During tenure state Head Start Programs
sought and secured supplemental funding for Head Start from the State of NH through special-
legisiation. Represented State programs at national level, and provided timely and accurate in-
formation exchange between local and national groups.

Region I, (New England) Administration for Children and Families
Boston, MA (Working through consultant contracts managed by 3rd parties)

Consultant/Program Monitor, participating in reviews of Head Start programs throughout New
England, monjtoring compliance with federal Performance Standards in the areas of Education,
Disabilities, Mental Health and Administration.

Consultant/Member of Race Relation Work Group, researching the status of and making rec-
ommendations fo improve the quality of interracial relations within the New England Head Start
community.




REA 1. PEEIFFER

FINANCE EXECUTIVE with more than twenty years of experience in quasi-public agencies, nonprofit, private
companies and state organizations. Areas of expertise embrace all facets of finance in addition to strategic
planning, risk management, information systems, and purchasing. Exceptional technology skills, improves
operational efficiency and financial controls through the use of systems and procedures. Demonstrated leadership
skills completing large projects and managing professionals. '

PROKESSIONAL EXPERTENCE —
\
Lynn Economic Opportunity Inc. 2011 — Present
Chief Financial Officer for $17M Community Action Agency providing Head Start, Early Head e,

After school, Preschool, Fuel Assistance, Sober Living and Affordable Housing services., Responsible for
planning, budgeting, compliance and risk management, rate setting, reporting, auditing and day-to-day operational
oversight of financial functions of organization. Management of 6 professional financial staff and directing
activities of AR, AP, Payroll, Capital Assets, Revenues and Reporting.

.Robert Half Managemenrt Consplting Group 2005 - 2010

Provide onsite consulting on a mission specific basis, serving in Interim CFO, and Interim Controller positions
performing various troubleshooting and problem-solving functions. Diagnose and enhance cash flow concerns,
perform reconciliations, address workflow backlogs, propose and implement systems changes, develop budgets
and forecast plans, monitor compliance and assure exemplary audit results, Sample projects include:

+  Controller for North East|Trees/Greenwayl.A/Charles Drew University - Responsibility for financial
restructuring for a growing nonprofit organization.

+  Overhauled accounting, reporting and management protocols to build administrative and financial
infrastructure capacity for expansion and assure full compliance with federal, state and award-specific
regulations as well as contract-specific terms & conditions.

+ Implemented new budgeting and time reporting systems to monitor contract and program progress and
conirol costs.

»  Provided comprehensive and accurate reports to support senior management team decision-making.
Oversaw all audit outcomps with federal, state, county, munjcipal and foundational stakeholders.

Provided oversight of HR, matters.
‘\\\\
LA IMPACT - California Department of Justice (1998 - 2005
Los Angeles Interagency Metropofitan Police Apprehension Crime Task Force \
Chief Financial Officer

Bottom line financial responsibility for $210 Million in seized assets and a $13 Million annual budget for this
countywide, quasi-public agency charged with developing and implementing communication linkages to reduce
crime rate. Manage a staff of six professionals and ten FTEs. Complete fiscal oversight of grants and operational
revenues for 20 functional investigative groups.

» Designed, implemented and managed six databases that allow sharing of operational and financial
information throughout the agencies. '
+  Chaired Technology Committee that designed programs and provided quantitative tools to evaluate
program effectiveness.
« Created and implemented Ex Intranet website that connects twenty operational groups to facilitate
a

communication and coordination of activities.

U O R SHOG |



REA L. PFEIFFER

Developed and managed
Responsible for resolving
revenues that would have

Page Two

1 series of expense management procedures that have decreased operating costs
disputes and issues on unliguidated assets to receive in excess of $5 Million in
been otherwise unrealized.

Prepared annual budget and monitored actual-to-plan during the course of the year.

Developed regular and
force activities,

ad hoc reports for senior management team to inform and update on task

Prepared financial reporting to all funding agencies on task force activities to meet all state, federal and

local regulations, and to ¢

nsure cash flow management.

Implemented policies and protocols for Financial Unit. Building electronic and manual systems of

information management
recordkeeping.

to assure that al] federal, state and local requirements are met with regard to

STATE OF MASSACHUSETTS

1980 - 1997

Central Office Account Manager - Department Of Mental Health (1988 to 1997)
Administrative oversight and analysis for area-based, programmatic and administrative agency budget in excess
of $300 Million for inpatient and residential mental health services statewide.

Analyzed, prepared and p
Ensured ongoing compli
plans and goals or to eff
Prepared ongoing and ad-
surveys, etc) to provide in
redeployment options/str

Provided technical supeiv
and short term planning,
Interacted with oversight
(i.e., A&F, Ways & Mezan

esented annual agency spending plans for nine hospitals.
ce by monitoring agency activities to assure adherence to agency financial
ate goal and milestone revisions.
oc analyses (i.e., payroll reports, contract utilization studies, staff modeling
ormation to senior management on budget status and potential resource
gies.
sion with seven statewide, area-based DMH administrative offices in long term
well as day-to-day tasks.
ncies and constituents with regard to agency budget status and agency goals
5, EOHHS, etc).

Budget Officer - Department of Pablic Health (1985 to 1988)

Responsible for technical management of budgeting, contracting, personnel and hiring for the Divisions of Family
Health Services with a budget totaling $85m for the administration of statewide Maternal and Child Health
Programs (WIC, Healthy Start, Handicapped Children). Supervised 17 staff members.

Designed and managed technical processes and protocols in service procurement and tracking utilization.

Prepared spending plans
Managed contracting and
Oversaw accounts payable

d internal budgeting documents.
iring procedures including issuance of RFP’s and vacancy announcements.
and billing functions,

L] . e @ L]

Directed the implementation of the state’s first pilot automated accounting system - replicated statewide.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science i;’m gement, Northeastern University, 1991
er of Public Administration, eastern University, Coursework completed
eller School of Management, CPA Cetification coursework (Becker courses)
Certified Public Finance Officer — currently testing March through June 2013

\5__._.—‘—-”’/
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7 30 Exc ngelStreet. Berlin,

|

Website: www.tccap.org * E-mail: admin@tccap.org

Chief Executive Officer: Michael Coughlin

List of Key Administrative Personnel

RI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION
PROGRAM Inc.

i
{ i Serving Coos, Carroll & Grafton Counties
NH 03570 - (603) 752-7001 « Toll Free: 1-800-552-4617 « Fax: (603) 752-7607

As of: November, 2013 This Contract \
‘ Title Name Annual Salary Percentage | Amount
' Chief Executive Officer | Michael Coughlin $140,000 0.00% 0|
Chief Operations Officer | Peter Higbee $90,000 0.00% (ﬂ
Chief Financial Officer Rea Pfeiffer $83,000 0.00% m
Weatherization Administration Community Energy Programs
(603) 752-7105 (603) 752-7001 Contact (603) 752-7100

AcD

(603) 752-7941

e (603) 752-3248

RSVP.

(603) 752-4103



